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Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited (the “Company”) was
formed through the restructuring of Harbin Power Plant Equipment
Group Corporation (“HPEGC"), which is the oldest large-scale
power plant equipment manufacturer in the People's Republic
of China (the “"PRC") and its three affiliates: Harbin Electrical
Machinery Works, Harbin Boiler Works and Harbin Turbine Works
(“the three major power factories”). These three major power
factories were established in the 1950s. The Company was
established in Harbin, PRC on 6th October, 1994. The dealings in
the shares of the Company commenced on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKSE") on 16th December, 1994.

As at 31st December, 2007, the share capital of the Company
comprised of 1,376,807,000 shares, of which 675,571,000 shares

were circulated on the HKSE as H shares.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the largest
manufacturer of power plant equipment in the PRC. The Group's

principal activities include:

e Thermal power equipment: boilers, steam turbines and steam
turbine generators with single unit capacity up to 1,000MW
heavy-duty gas turbine and combined cycle units, the largest
manufacturing base for clean coal combustion equipment in
the PRC: CFB, PFBC, etc.

e Hydro power equipment: hydro power sets with single unit
capacity up to 700MW

e Nuclear power main equipment: nuclear island and conventional

island equipment for nuclear power plants

e QOther products: ancillary equipment, industrial boilers, industrial
steam turbines, control devices, AC/DC motors, valves for power

stations, pressure vessels and axial compressor, etc.

e Turn-key construction of power station projects and other

engineering projects

e Contract supply of complete sets of thermal and hydro power

equipment
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Overview of the Company (continued)
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e |mport and export of power equipment

e Engineering technology R&D of complete set of power
equipment

e System R&D of complete set of power equipment

e R&D of power equipment and its ancillary equipment

e Technology transfer, technical consultation and services

e Environmental protection engineering services

The Group possesses a comprehensive range of advanced

production and research facilities. Its capabilities in research

and development, product manufacturing and power station

construction have been in the forefront of the power plant

equipment manufacturing industry in the PRC.

The Group is located in Harbin, PRC, also known as the “City
of the Power"
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Harbin Power Plant Equipment
Group Corporation (“HPEGC”)

FRHMIR A RARER
Holders of H Shares

50.93% 49.07%
MREE N RERNH AR AR
(TAR2A7 )
Harbin Power Equipment
Company Limited (the “Company”)
90.94% 62.54% 87.37% 100% 60% 100% 100% 100%
REE BRRE MERE RERE BE MEEE BRE MESE
RIERER TR IR B R BILTIZER BERE (RESB) 3 REE
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([sAEARE 1) (MR R= ) ([E#ARF]) ([TEAAF]) ROBERAR AR BREFEAR BRAT
Harbin Harbin Harbin Electrical Harbin Power Harbin Power Harbin Power Harbin HE Harbin
Boiler Turbine Machinery Engineering Equipment Plant Electric Power Plant
Company Company Company Limited Company National Equipment Machinery Valve
Limited Limited (“Electrical Limited Engineering Corporation AC-DC Motor Company
(“Boiler (“Turbine Machinery (“Engineering Research (QHD) Limited Duty Limited
Company”) Company”) Company”) Company”) Centre Co., Ltd Heavy Company
Equipment

Co., Ltd
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Financial Highlights (continued)

AEBRAFZEE  EERAGEHMINGET :
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Turnover

B A1 Al Vg A
Profit before tax

AN EFEF)H
Net profit for the year

BEHRE

Total assets

BERE

Total liabilities

PR RER

Minority interests

% 2R fe 2
Shareholders’ fund

BRFEE
Net assets per share

FRAF

Earnings per share

Unit
By

ARETT
Rmb’000

ARETT
Rmb’'000

ABRBTT
Rmb’000

ABRBTT
Rmb’000

ARETT
Rmb’000

ARETT
Rmb’'000

AERBTT
Rmb’000

AR%T
Rmb

AR%T
Rmb

The summary of results, assets and liabilities of the Group for

the last five years are as follows:

BE+-_A=+—HLEEE

2007 2006
27,648,584 29,098,016
2,115,820 1,543,573
1,527,979 1,024,581
42,090,490 37,444,548
33,678,080 31,665,150
1,199,417 947,931
7,212,993 4,831,467
5.24 3.79

1.123 0.804

2005

18,464,106

696,125

464,990

36,448,887

31,924,207

640,052

3,884,628

3.05

0.389

Year ended 31st December,

2004

10,215,670

168,963

117,572

31,015,199

27,361,591

540,546

3,113,062

2.62

0.099

2003

5,144,246

70,336

53,471

17,513,741

138,992,527

516,189

3,005,025

2.53

0.045
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Financial Highlights (continued)

FEER PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

AKRRETEBEAREER AR TIRENEEIE The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides

RIEFEMBAR ° corporate management services to its subsidiaries.

#E2007F12A31HLERE HBE2006F12A31BILFE
Year ended 31st December, 2007 Year ended 31st December, 2006

RIZERNBELEREEAER BxH BENH BER LENHE
Turnover and contribution to operating Turnover Contribution to Turnover  Contribution to
profit by major product categories operating operating
profit profit
ARETFIT ARETFIT ARETFT ARKFT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
NEBEHRE 20,463,511 3,417,779 21,836,612 2,646,262

Main thermal power equipment

KEEHSE 2,172,504 305,648 1,608,561 112,097
Main hydro power equipment

B TERE 2,090,704 44,892 3,007,672 5,199
Engineering services for power stations

BUEHEREERE 1,124,500 317,754 1,053,026 265,585
Power equipment accessories and parts

RE R BH & H b 2 i B RS 1,797,365 241,638 1,592,145 209,838
A.C./D.C. motors and other products and services

27,648,584 4,327,711 29,098,016 3,238,981
Hofth B s 355,042 384,251
Profit from other activities
AOEINEEERZER 2,604,382 2,091,624
Expenses not allocated to major products
At Al A 2,115,820 1,543,573

Profit before tax
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Chairman’s Statement
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Mr. Gong Jing Kun, Chairman /

To all shareholders,

It is my honor to present our Company’s annual report for the year
ended 31st December, 2007, and wish to take this opportunity
to express my sincerest appreciation to the concern and support
of all shareholders.

During the year 2007, the economy in China continued to grow in
a fast and steady pace. The growth rate of GDP was 11.4%. The
development of the economy procured the growth in demand
for power equipment market. As of the end of 2007 the total
installed capacity of power generator units in Mainland China
reached 713 million kV, an increase of 14.68% from that in 2007.
By capitalizing on the development opportunities arising from
the rapid development of economy in China, all fellows in the
Company jointly devoted their efforts, and overcame difficulties
with respect to numerous new products, tight production lead
time, and surge in raw material price. Different aspects of works
further achieved outstanding achievement. Products with output of
31,257.45 MW were completed, an increase of 15.57% over last
year. The Company recorded consolidated profit after taxation and
minority interests of RMB1,527.98 million, representing an increase
of 49.13% over last year. Turnover was RMB27648.58 million,
representing a decrease of 4.98% over last year. Indicators such
as output of product and operating profit recorded breakthrough
to new heights in the Company’s record of history.

The Board of Directors proposed at the shareholders’ general
meeting the payment of a final dividend of RMB125.2893 million
from the profit available for dividend, representing a dividend of
RMBO0.091, as the Company'’s return to the shareholders. Dividends
for H Shares will be paid in Hong Kong dollars; the exchange rate
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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used is based on the average of the median exchange rate as
published by the People’'s Bank of China for five days preceding
11th April, 2008, i.e. RMB 1 to HK$1.112. The dividend per H
Share amounts to HK$0.1012.

The register of the members of the Company will be closed in the
period from 6th May, 2008 to 5th June, 2008, both days inclusive,
during which no transfer of shares can be registered. The final
dividend for the year 2007 will be distributed to the shareholders
who names appear on the register of members of the Company
on 6th May, 2008. Such dividend will be distributed before 1st
August, 2008. In order to qualify for the final dividend of 2007,
all duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificate(s) must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong registrars, Hong Kong Registrars Limited at Shops 1712-16,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 5 May 2008.

In the year of 2007, the Company devoted further efforts in sales
and marketing. The development of the international market also
produced outstanding results. The new-receiving contracts for
the year amounted to Rmb513 billion, representing an increase
of 80% over last year. A number of contacts with significance
were signed: 2 x 700MW hydro power turbine generator units
for the underground power station of the Three Gorges, and the
world's first ultra super critical 1000MW air cooling steam turbine
and generator units for Shanxi Dingshang. Through signing the
conventional island contract for the Sanmen Nuclear Project in
Zhejiang Province, the Company obtained the order for the world's
first third generation 1,000MW class AP1000 conventional nuclear
island project. There was further breakthrough in the development
of international market. Contract was entered with PAITON in
Indonesia for 1x660 MW coal-fired power plant, which achieved
the initial export of 600MW class EPC generator units in whole
set. Supply contract on generator units and equipments in whole
set was signed with# @B #Ein Brazil about 1x350MW60Hz for
three main generator units, which marked our successful entry
in emerging market such as Americas.

The Company continued to improve its technology innovation
system, and implemented its technology leading strategies in full
force. During the year, a total of Rmb697 million was invested
and completed 233 items of R&D, among which the projects
under State 863 Plan, namely the “research and application in
ultra super critical coal fired power technologies” was awarded
Class 1 Technology Advancement Award of the State; and the

£002-900Z Hoday jenuuy paiwi] Auedwo)) uswdinb3 semod uigieH H
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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“research and equipment research and manufacturing for the
critical technologies in large-scale direct air cooling turbines” was
awarded Class 2 Technology Advancement Award of the State. By
leveraging on the two third generation 1,000MW class nuclear
power homemade projects at Sanmen and Haiyang, the Company
introduced nuclear island from Westinghouse Electric in United
States and the manufacturing technologies for conventional island
from Mitsubishi of Japan, the sources of technologies for the
development of third generation nuclear power products were
resolved. The Company is designated as the contracting unit
for the manufacturing of the third generation 1,000 MW class
nuclear power AP1000 nuclear island steam generator and main
pump generator unit. The super critical and ultra super critical
generator units of 600MW and ultra super critical generator units
of 1000MW introduced from overseas were basically homemade.
The world first 700MW all air cooling hydro generator units was
successfully put into operation. New products such as 600MW
super critical “W" fire boiler and T000MW ultra super critical air
cooling generator units were designed and developed.

In 2007, the Company completed power generation equipment of
31,257 MW, which broke the record and achieved new historical
heights. The production system of the Company fully performed
the contracts subject to the challenges in high loading for output
of products. The management structure was further rationalized.
(Qinghuangdao) Heavy Duty Equipment Co. Ltd. (EE25)EAEE
AR A7), Harbin Generator Units Factory AC/DC Generator Units
Co. Ltd. ("8 FREM IR B it 1A R & 2 A), Harbin Power Station
Valve Co., Ltd. ("B Bt KIPI B R A &) were established to create
conditions for the development of nuclear power market.

In order to accelerate the development of hi-tech products
such as nuclear power and pumped storage units, the Company
successfully placed 102.355 million H Shares in the Hong Kong
securities market on 2nd March, 2007, and raised proceeds of
HK$1,002 million. The Company will apply these funds according
to the committed purposes, and lay a sound foundation for the
long-term development of the Company.

In 2007, Harbin Power had obtained satisfactory results. This
was the joint efforts on the support of every shareholder, the
Company's management and all staffs. On behalf of the Board, |
hereby express my gratitude to the management and all staffs. In
the meantime, | wish to express my appreciation to the continuous
support and trust of every shareholder to the Board.
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In 2008, China will continue to call on a "healthy and fast”
development in national economy. it is expected that the newly
added installed capacity for the power generation equipment
market will be 8000-90 Mkv. With the conflict in the demand
and supply of power moving towards its equilibrium, the speed
of growth in market demand will slow down. The demand for
power generation equipment will develop fast towards new
energy sources represented by nuclear power. Demand from
international market will remain strong.

As to Harbin Power, throughout these years of development, its
production capabilities and types of product increased significantly.
Technology standards of its products have advanced to a new
higher level, which will allow the satisfaction of product demand
from different customers. At the same time, the Company is also
faced with the adverse impact from factors such as increasingly
keen market competition in the PRC and overseas, surge in prices
of raw materials and tight lead time for provision of supplies,
which will bring new challenges to the Company.

The Company will position itself with the missions of enhancing
economic efficiency and sustainable development, to place
emphasis in the development of new hi-tech products such as
nuclear power, pumped large storage units and IGCC, alongside
with leverage on high capacity, high parameter, environmentally
friendly thermal power generation units. With a focus externally
in marketing and internally in management, we will complete all
tasks in 2008, and use our best endeavours to become China's
best and the world's first class power generation equipment
enterprise.

We shall be further determined and enthusiastic to capitalize on
the development opportunities to improve our results and bring
better return to every shareholder.

Chairman
Gong Jing-kun
Harbin, the People's Republic of China, 11th April, 2008
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REEHERITEER

2007 - FEIKERFBIFRRAE R BRE
SELEL EFEENID  BEEREHE
RERERNMEREFKRKENRES 24 2H
BEER32458ETER b EFREAK R
14.42% o 2 Bl % & = 3% 532,65918 T FLF -
b EFE R R14.44% - 2 BFTILILIE R B
B HI10,0008 TR BREAEREIE
TR EHM32EBTE L EFRBAER
14.68% ° ENFEROIFEMEE - #HE THER
BHRETENFELR -

HESE P

20075 - REEBEHETEHNE ARKESI13E
7T * L2006 28518 L K80% - R A ER
#3688 7L ' KERMEI6E I Bt LIRR
70187T © MAH101ET - HA39EL - RAIFZ S
BIEG—HENTECEEFEEMETLEH
M - B - BIEWSIEER - UFEBERER
ERERNEIMBMERMKELT  MHERE
ANBERERAED  HBA—H ' IEETS -
ARPEX Ao REERED  YELENE
Re ZEEKEGTHBOEE  NREER
MR - RAEKE ERRK  ZEERHE
TERIRRER  XRAFAITHIHEHAEIIE
WEFEE - R2007FFK  AEBEHEFFIE
e AR84912TT -

MACRO-ECONOMY & INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT

In the year of 2007, China economy continued to develop steadily
and rapidly, with a 11.4 per cent increase in GDP growth over
last year. As the rapid development of national economy and the
improvement of people’s life standard, overall domestic power
consumption amounted to 3,245.8 billion KW/h, an increase of
14.42 per cent over last year. National power generation amounted
to 3,255.9 billion KW/h, an increase of 14.44 per cent over last
year. The new approved start-up projects reached 100.09MW,
while the total capacity surpassed 700,000MW to 713,290MW,
an increase of 14.36 per cent over last year. The strong demand
for power keeps promoting the rapid development of power

generation equipment industry.

NEW CONTRACTS

In the year of 2007, the new-receiving contracts of the Group
have already amounted to Rmb51.3 billion, an increase of
80% compared to Rmb28.5 billion in 2006, among which the
thermal power equipments contracts have reached Rmb35.8
billion, and for hydro power equipments is Rmb3.6 billion, and
Rmb7.0 billion for engineering services, Rmb1.0 billion for gas
turbines and Rmb3.9 billion for others. By fully leveraging on the
effects derived from the two sources, namely the comparative
advantages of the Company as a whole and its fellow entities,
the Company expanded in domestic and international market at
the same time. Efforts were devoted to coordinate on hi-tech
products that comply with energy development policies of the
State and emphasis was placed to traditional products with
good efficiency and great market demand. In responding to the
demand from the market and the customers, the Company fully
capitalized on its overall comparative advantages, and placed
emphasis to enhance economic efficiency. The market share for
traditional products was consolidated, and the development of
hi-tech products and environmental friendly products such as
ultra super critical products, hydropower main equipment, heavy
duty gas turbines and nuclear power products was accelerated
for the creation of a new era for business development. As of
the end of 2007, the contracts on hand of the Group amounted
to Rmb849 million.
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In the thermal power front: The Company achieved ingenious results
in the development for the main equipment market. Its share in
the market increased over that of the previous year. The Company
had consolidated its leading position in the conventional thermal
power market, and laid good foundation for steady enhancement
of the economic benefit to the Company. On the other hand,
the Company also placed endeavours in long-term development.
Emphasis was given to develop the market of hi-tech products that
comply with the energy development policies. Supply contracts
were signed with Huaneng Ruijing for the first set of super
critical 350MW boiler, generator and main power equipment, with
Huadian Zhenghong and Tangzhai for the 600MW super critical
“W" fire boiler, with Huaneng for 9 x 670MW the first super
critical tower brown coal boiler, and with Daitang International
Shanxi Dingshang for the world's first ultra super critical T000MW
air cooling steam turbine and generator units which symbolise
a new era of hi-tech development for the Company. The award
of 2x330MW de-sulfur island by China Resources Jinneng and
the 2x1000MW deNox project of Huadian Wuhu and Huaneng
Jinning marked the progresses achieved by the Company in
environmental friendly businesses. The Company obtained the
supply contract of 2 9F class gas turbines and combined circle
units from Zhongshan Jiaming, and maintained nearly 50% share

of market for major gas turbines in the PRC.

In the hydro power front: Upon the excellent performance achieved
by the generator units in the right shore of the Three Gorges, the
Group also signed contract for 2 x 700MW hydro power turbine
generator units for the underground power station of the Three
Gorges. The Group also won several major hydro power projects,
such as the contract for 6 x 650MW hydro power turbine generator
units of Yuzhido power station and 4 x 600MW generator units
of Guandi power station in Sichuan. The Company continued to
maintain its leading edge in the major hydro power equipment
market in China, and signed international hydro power project
contracts. These contracts included 2x110MW with £ & 1# 5 in

Vietnam and 3x90MW with PIZE in Indonesia.
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In the Nuclear Power front: Through signing the conventional
island contract for the Sanmen Nuclear Project in Zhejiang
Province, the Company obtained the order for the world's first
third generation 1,000MW class nuclear power AP1000 gas turbine
generator units, and also signed the 1,000MW class gas turbine
generator units equipment contract for Haiyang Nuclear Power
project of Shangdong Nuclear Power Co., Ltd. The obtaining of
these contracts marked the profound results achieved in the
development of new model of power generation equipment

represented by nuclear power.

In the international market and general contract for power plant
engineering field: the company refined plans for the development
of international market and sales and marketing strategies.
Whilst proactively developing for the EPC project, the Company
also drove the increase in exports of main generator equipment.
Contracts were entered with PAITON in Indonesia for 1x660 MW
coal-fired power plant, the contracting of Phase 2 project for Cam
pha in Vietnam, the supply of 2x600MW main generator units
island to MAHAN and SALAYA in India, 3x600MW pit-mount
thermal power project at HONGSA in Laos, 4x600MW super
critical boiler for EHi & # in India. Apart from consolidating the
traditional markets in South-east Asia and Africa, the Company
also devoted efforts to develop international market in Russia and
the America. Supply contracts on generator units and equipments
were obtained from i@ EIE in Brazil about 1x350MW60Hz for
three main generator units, and from EE-RZ#1 2x300MW 60Hz in
Brazil for thermal power project. Export contracts newly signed

amounted to Rmb9,000 million.
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

With the mission to fully fulfill the contracts and satisfy the
needs of customers, the Company enhanced the integration of
customer services in 2007 Tracking service is effected from the
time the contract becomes effective until 168 hours after trial
operation commenced. Customer service work is thus extended
from the coordination within the enterprise to solving critical
issues on-site. The production assignment for the year was
completed with excellence efficiently. Output of power generation
equipment first exceeded 30 MW. A number of challenging key
projects were completed successfully. The 700MW major air
cooling hydro power turbine generator unit in the right shore of
the Three Gorges, which is the first generator of in the PRC with
proprietary intellectual property rights and of high international
standard, successfully commenced operation. The 1000MW ultra
super critical generator unit for State Power Company in Taizhou
duly commenced operation and generated power. The 600MW
ultra super critical project for Huaneng Yingkou and the 600MW
ultra super critical project of China Power Investment Fushan,
both of which are the first in the PRC, successfully commenced
operation. With the successful commencement of operation
for the deNox project in Gucheng and the commencement of
construction for the del-Nox project in Xuancheng established
the good image of the Company in the environmental protection
market. The manufacturing of two steam generator units for
Nuclear Power C2 Project in proceeded according to the plans.
The qualities in the products manufactured were widely recognized
by the owners as well as the experts, which had enhanced the
strategic position of the Company in nuclear power aspect. The

export projects ran smoothly as planned.
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The total output for the year was up to 31,257.45MW (in terms of
steam turbine generator units and hydro power turbine generator
units), representing an increase of 15.57 per cent compared with
that of last year. Among which, 60 units of utility boiler with
total capacity of 24,985MW, an increase of 17.05 per cent over
last year; 76 steam turbines for power plant with total capacity
of 24,260MW, an increase of 20.71 per cent over last year and
64 turbine generator units with total capacity of 25,227MW, an
increase of 7.49 per cent over last year; 40 units of hydro power
turbo-generator units with total capacity of 6,030.45 MW, an
increase of 68.64 per cent over last year; 2 units of gas turbines
with total capacity of 511.20MW, a decrease of 50% over last

year.

Faced with the high work load for its production assignments, the
Company devoted additional efforts and applied process control as
the core of its project management work. Through administration
and control measures such as enhancing technological preparation,
material supply, production arrangement as well as contracting
and outsourcing, key projects, procedures and equipment were
subject to total management. These measures in fact became a
shield to the fulfillment of contract. Additional efforts were devoted
to the management of export projects. Considerable emphasis
were placed on the international standard in terms of design for
product functions, quality of manufacturing process, appearance
and packaging according to the specific features of international
market. This had assured the compliance of requirements in
international market and enhanced the international image and
international competitiveness of the Company. The Company
proactively complies to the requirements of energy saving and
emission reduction of the State through developing large-scale
and efficient environmental and energy-saving products, as
well as strengthening its own energy-saving and environmental
mechanism. The consolidated energy consumption index of the

Company was better than that of 2006.
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R&D AND TECHNOLOGY INTRODUCTION

In the year 2007, the Group invested a total of Rmb697 million
and completed 233 items of R&D, among which the outstanding
ones have obtained provincial or ministerial awards. Taking into
account needs from the market, the Company favourably achieved
improvement in its core competitiveness through technological
advancement and innovation, as well as introduction and absorption

of technologies.

Proprietary technology innovation achieved new results. First
350MW and 660MW super critical brown coal boiler and first
multi-co generation 135MWCFB boiler were proprietarily researched
and developed in the PRC. The 660MW super critical tower brown
coal boiler proprietarily researched and developed for Jiutai power
plant of Huaneng occupied leading position in the international
market. The 600MW super critical “W" fire boiler proprietarily
researched and developed for Zhenhong power plant of Huadian
filled the absence of same product in the PRC. New models for
660MW and 1000MW super critical air cooling generator units
proprietarily researched and developed were products leading in
the category no matter within and outside the PRC. The design for
new products, such as two cylinder cooling has turbine generator
units, which will have good prospects and competitiveness in
the market, had achieved breakthrough results in corresponding
phase. Various technological indicators of the 150MW pumped
storage units at Baishan proprietarily innovated and completed
had achieved advanced standards for similar products in the

international market.

The progresses on technology introduction and absorption had
been smooth. According to the strategies for nuclear power
development of the State, the Company is designated as the
contracting unit for the third generation 1,000MW class AP1000
nuclear island main equipment steam generator and main pump
generator. Moreover, by leveraging on local projects at Sanmen
and Haiyang, the Company introduced relevant technologies
from Westinghouse Electric in United States, every aspects
of work have been proceeding smoothly at present. Each of
the technology transfer agreement to be introduced as the

technologies for Nuclear Power AP1000 Conventional Island has
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been entered into with Mitsubishi in Japan at the beginning of
2008. The introduction of core technologies about 1000MW ultra
super critical turbine generator from Toshiba in Japan has been
proceeding steadily. Most of the works for introducing 300MW
class pump storage units from Alstorm Corporation in France
were completed, and were successfully applied in the product
development. The 9FA class gas turbines and combined circle
units introduced from General Electric of United States had a
homemade proportion of over 90.%. The super critical and ultra
super critical generator units of 600MW introduced from overseas

were entirely homemade.

Efforts devoted to establish technological innovative system.
In order to enhance capabilities in proprietary innovation to the
fullest extent, on the basis of fully leveraging on existing research
and development systems, the functions of the research and
development system will be continuously perfected and further
expanded. With a focus in perfecting the quality assurance
system, the awareness to quality will be strengthened so as to
enhance the quality of assurance standard. Quality supervision
and auditing will be tightened over the fellow enterprise. Issues
are promptly rectified upon discovery, which effectively enhanced

the operation level of the quality assurance system.

PROFIT

In the year of 2007, the net profit of the Group was Rmb1,527.98
million, an increase of 49.13 per cent compared to the last year;
the earnings per share was Rmb1.12, an increase of Rmb0.32
compared to the corresponding period of last year; the net asset
as at the end of the period was Rmb7,212.99 million, an increase
of Rmb2,381.53 million compared to the beginning of the year;
the net asset per share was Rmb5.24, an increase of Rmb1.45

compared to the beginning of the year.

During the period, the growth in the profit of the Group was due

to the increase in profit margin.

DIVIDEND

A dividend of Rmb0.091 per share for the year of 2007 (2006:
Rmb0.090 per share) was proposed by the Board of Directors.
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TURNOVER

In 2007, the Group recorded turnover of main business activities
of Rmb27,648.58 million, a decrease of 4.98 per cent compared
to the last year. In particular, turnover of the thermal power
main equipment was Rmb20,463.51 million, a decrease of
6.29 per cent over last year, representing 74.01 per cent of the
turnover of main business activities. Turnover of hydropower
main equipment was Rmb2,172.50 million, an increase 35.06 per
cent over last year, representing 7.86 per cent of the turnover
of main business activities. Turnover of power plant engineering
services project was Rmb2,090.70 million, a decrease of 30.49
per cent compared to last year, representing 7.56 per cent of
the turnover of main business activities. Turnover of power plant
accessories and parts was Rmb1,124.50 million, an increase of
6.79 per cent over last year, representing 4.07 per cent of the
turnover of main business activities. Turnover of AC/DC motors
and other products and services was Rmb1,797.37 million, an
increase of 12.89 per cent over last year, representing 6.50 per

cent of the turnover of main business activities.

The main reason for the decrease in turnover was the fall in the
turnover of thermal power main equipment and the turnover of

power plant engineering services.

During the period under review, the export sales of the Group (which
was mainly in Asia and in Africa) amounted to Rmb2,157.07 million,
a decrease of Rmb1,386.98 million over last year, representing
7.80 per cent of the turnover of main business activities.

COST

During the period under review, the cost of main business activities
of the Group was Rmb23,320.87 million, a decrease of 9.82 per
cent as compared to last year. The decrease was attributable to
the fall in the turnover of main business activities and effective
measures adopted by the Group to control cost expenditures.

GROSS PROFIT AND PROFIT MARGIN

During the period under review, the gross profit from main
business activities of the Group was Rmb4,327.71 million, an
increase of 33.61 per cent as compared to last year. The profit
margin was 15.65 per cent, an increase of 4.52 percentage
points over last year.
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Among which the profit for thermal power main equipment
were Rmb3,417.78 million, an increase of Rmb771.52 million
compared to last year. The profit margin for thermal power main
equipment was 16.70 per cent, an increase of 4.58 percentage
points compared to last year. The profit for hydropower main
equipment was Rmb305.65 million, an increase of Rmb193.55
million compared to last year. The profit margin for hydropower
power main equipment was 14.07 per cent, an increase of 7.10
percentage points compared to last year. The profits for power
plant engineering services were Rmb44.89 million, an increase
of Rmb39.69 million compared to last year. The profit margin
for engineering services was 2.15 per cent, an increase of 1.98
percentage points over last year. The profit for power plant
accessories and parts were Rmb317.75 million, an increase of
Rmb52.17 million compared to last year. The profit margin for power
plant accessories and parts were 28.26 per cent, an increase of
3.04 percentage points over last year. The profit for the AC/DC
motors and other product and service was Rmb241.64 million,
an increase of Rmb31.80 million compared to last year. The profit
margin for he AC/DC motors and other product and service was

13.44 per cent, almost the same as last year.

The main reason for profit margin increase is that the strategy

for cost management has gained a satisfactory result.

EXPENSES DURING THE PERIOD

The Group's expenses from operation activities during the
year of 2007 amounted to Rmb413.61 million, an increase of
Rmb48.27 million compared to last year, of which the main
reasons were the increase in marketing expenses and quality

assurance deposits.

Expense from administration activities amounted to Rmb1,886.76
million, an increase of Rmb342.71 million or 22.20 per cent
compared to last year of which the main reason is the increase

in R&D expenses, asset impairment provision and labor cost.

INTEREST EXPENSE

In 2007, the Group has incurred an interest expense of Rmb154.86

million, almost the same as last year.
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FUNDING AND BORROWINGS

The Group's funding for operation and development mainly has
three resources; they are shareholder capital, customer loans
and bank borrowings. The borrowings of the Group will be
arranged according to specific projects. Except for those special
situations, the loans will be separately conducted by subsidiaries
under the Group. However, the Group must approve the capital
investment borrowings in advance. As the order and accounts
receivables of the Group increased significantly during the past
two years, the working capital of the Group has been abundant
and thus repaid substantially all of the loans for working capital.
As at 31st December 2007, the total sums of the Company’s
bank borrowings are Rmb4,763.28 million (31st December 2006:
Rmb4,373.04 million). The Group's bank borrowings are loans
from various commercial banks and the State's policy banks
with interest rates stipulated by the state. Among which the
Group's borrowings due within one year were Rmb753.39 million,
an increase of Rmb252.27 million compared to the beginning
of the year. The Group's borrowings due after one year were
Rmb4,009.89 million, an increase of Rmb137.97 million compared

to the beginning of the year.

DEPOSITS AND CASH FLOW

As at 31st December 2007, bank deposits and cash flow of
the Group amounted to Rmb9,621.54 million, an increase of
Rmb3,883.07 million over the beginning of the year. During the
period, net cash outflow from operating activities amounted to
Rmb3,560.12 million. Net cash inflow from investment activities
amounted to Rmb1,010.29 million. And net cash inflow from

financing activities was Rmb974.45 million.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND ITS CHANGES

As at 31st December 2007, total assets of the Group amounted
to Rmb42,090.49 million, an increase of Rmb464.594 million
(or 12.41 per cent) compared to the beginning of the year.
Among which, total current assets were Rmb38,219.26 million,
representing 90.80 per cent of the total assets; total non-current
assets were Rmb3,871.23 million, representing 9.20 per cent of
the total assets.
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LIABILITIES

As at 31st December 2007, the Group's total liabilities amounted
to Rmb33,678.80 million, an increase of Rmb2,012.93 million
compared to the beginning of the year. Among which, total
current liabilities were Rmb27,903.89 million, representing 82.85
per cent of the total liabilities; total non-current liabilities were
Rmb5,774.19 million, representing 17.15 per cent of the total
liabilities. As at 31st December 2007, asset liability ratio of the

Group was 80.01 per cent.

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

As at 31st December 2007, the shareholders’ equity of the Company
amounted to Rmb7212.99 million, an increase of Rmb2,381.563
million compared to the beginning of the year; the net asset per
share was Rmbb5.24. During the period, return rate on net assets

of the Company is 21.18 per cent.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31st December 2007, gearing ratio of the Group (non-current
liabilities over total shareholders’ equity) was 0.80:1 as compared

to that of 1.16:1 at the beginning of the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE OF ASSET

As at 31st December 2007, the Group's pledge of assets of

Rmb169.68 million were used for securing liquidity loan.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND IMPORTANT INVESTMENT

In the year 2007, the Group has invested a total capital expenditure
of Rmb702 million in basic constructions and technology renovation.
Total investment for the project of manufacturing and construction
of main equipment at nuclear island was Rmb602 million, and
Rmb181 million was utilized in the year 2007. All factories have
been cold-sealed. It is expected that the nuclear power plant will

fully commence operation by October 2008.
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Rmb285 million and Rmb100 million were invested in the
manufacturing and construction of nuclear power main pump
generator and nuclear power plant valve, and Rmb31 million and
Rmb12 million were utilized in the year 2007. It is planned that
the Group will be equipped with the capability in the production

of nuclear power pump generator before May 2009.

A total of Rmb182 million was invested in the homemade project
for large-scale pumped storage unit, and Rmb72 million were
utilized in 2007. The project will complete and commence operation
by 2008. A capacity of 800MW per annum will be formed by the

pumped storage unit.

A total of Rmb248 million was invested for the technology
improvement projects of large-scale gas turbine generator units,
and Rmb77 million were utilized in 2007. The project will complete
and commence operation by 2008. A production capacity of all parts
of 6 -8 gas turbine generator units apart from high temperature

plate, burning room and spraying nozzle was formed.

EXPOSURETO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES AND
RELATED HEDGES

The Group has certain amount of deposits that are in foreign
currencies. As at 31st December 2007, the amount of the Group's
deposits in foreign currencies was approximately Rmb1,889.73
million. Export and foreign currencies settled businesses exposed

the Group to exchange risk.

UTILIZATION OF LISTING PROCEEDS

In the year 2007, the Group has utilized a total of Rmb350 million
from its listing proceeds for Workshop Base Construction project

and other projects.

For the year ended 31st December 2007, the Group has utilized
a total of Rmb1.795 billion from its H share listing proceeds, and
the remaining balance of listing proceeds of Rmb835 million were
deposited with the bank, and will be used in the second stage
of Workshop Base Construction project and other technology

renovation projects.
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EQUITY FINANCING

The Group further issued 102.355 million H shares on 2nd March
2007, with an issue price of HK$10.00 each share, and the listing
proceeds amounted to HK$1 billion. On the same day, controlling
shareholders of the Group remitted 10.235 million shares of
state share to National Social Security Fund and registered as
H share. Such fund raised is mainly used for the construction
of 1,000MW class nuclear island main equipment project of the
Second stage of Qinghuangdao Seaside Heavy Duty Workshop of
the Group. After the issuance, total capital of the Group increased
to 1,376.806 million shares. Among which 701.235 million shares
were held by Harbin Power Engineering Corp, accounting for
50.93 per cent; and H share amounted to 675.571 million Shares,

accounting for 49.07 per cent.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION

As at 31st December 2007, the Group had a workforce of 18,411
employees, and the total remuneration was approximately
Rmb1.092 billion. The Group regards human resource as the
core development value, and will arrange demand estimates
on human resources appropriately, implement targeted, layered
and segmented trainings so as to promote the overall quality of
its staff. As for remuneration, the Group adopted various salary
systems including position salary system and piece rate system,
which enhanced check-up, bringing all positive factors into play

and boosting the development of the Company.
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PROSPECT

In 2008, China will continue to call on a "healthy and fast”
development in national economy. The State will adopt sound
financial policies and tighten monetary policies. The adjustment in
the macro-economic policies of the State will provide unprecedented
opportunities as well as stringent challenges to the development
of the Company. Pursuant the State's economic development
plans, it is expected that the newly added installed capacity in
2008 will be 8000-90 Mkv. The total installed capacity in China
will exceed 900 Mkv by 2010. There will be a certain period of
time that the power generation equipment market in China will
experience a relatively high level of demand. Optimization in power
source structure is an important direction for the development
of power industry of the State. The market demand for power
generation equipment arising therefrom will continue to result
in the development of hi-tech products of high capacity, high
parameter, environmentally friendly and renewable aspects. Hi-
tech products will gradually be applied to replace conventional
power generation equipment and become the attention of
market competition in future. The Company will have to handle
properly the apparent conflicts arising between the growth in
production with addition of new products and existing production
capacity, addition of new generation units with surge in price of
raw materials and increase in efficiency, adjustment in macro-
economic policies and arranging production scientifically and
rationally, change in market demand and product development
with market development capabilities. The Group will seize this
development opportunity, enhance the reform and adjustment
of mechanism and cooperation system, and make great effort to
improve the company's independent R&D capability and the core
competition capability. Especially, the Group will pay attention

to the following work in 2008:

1. Push the development of nuclear power

The Company must firmly capture the golden opportunities
arising from pushing of development in nuclear construction by
the State, and use the introduction of AP1000 nuclear power
technology and cooperation manufacturing as the stepping
stone, and endeavour in the development of nuclear power
products and market. Advanced technologies will be introduced

from aboard and absorbed by the Company, after which will
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be applied in innovation. The development of nuclear power
business will align with the enhancement of the Company's
standard in technology development, production capacity
and management standard, which will in turn fully enhance
the core competitiveness of the Company. The development
of nuclear power business by the Company in the coming
three to five years will be planned seriously. The Company
will improve the organization structure for the development
of nuclear power, the sound development of system for
nuclear power products, and the overall strategy deployment
in the production entities. An organization structure for the
development of nuclear power with overall competitive edge,
clear distinction on internal division of labour and scientifically
efficient will be constituted, so as to ensure the effective
operation of the nuclear power quality assurance system.
The Company will complete the nuclear power projects on
hand timely and ensure the quality of the projects, as well as
make the nuclear power projects on hand genuine exhibits.
The construction of nuclear power production assurance
conditions and the process of infrastructure facilities will be
accelerated, so as to lay a new foundation for the nuclear

power market to achieve new breakthrough.

. Arrange production scientifically and rationally so as to

fully satisfy requirements of customers

Planning for the adjustment and capacity equilibrium will
be better made, so as to optimize the production entities
within and outside the Company. Advanced craftsmanship and
processing means will be adopted proactively, so as to improve
the process flow among the production entities on an ongoing
basis. Potential resources available within the Company will
be adequately explored, so as to form an organic body by
different segments linking up the entire production process.
This will in turn comprehensively enhance the production
efficiency of labour. Considerable emphasis will be placed
on the integration of external production resources, so as to
establish sound synergy with the public that can effectively
serve our management system. More efforts will be devoted
to assess the qualification of contractors, strengthen planning,
quality and progresses of contracting. The supply for the special
materials for the manufacturing of power generation equipment

is becoming tense, which has restricted the production and
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3.

operation of the Company to a great extent. The Company
will forecast the plan for the demand of special raw material
hereafter within a certain period of time according to the
features of its own product composition and market demand.
Good cooperation relationship will be maintained proactively
with suppliers so as to line up as long-term and stable strategic
cooperation partners. The Company will continue to leverage
on its overall advantage and continue to conclude from the
successful experiences derived from project management
and production arrangements. Through accurate and prompt
supply of generator units in sets, the overall image and
competitiveness of the Company in the market will enhance.
Administration for projects in the international market will
strengthen, so as to establish good reputation and image of
the Company in the international market. The Company will
continue to improve the work of emission reduction, enhance
product positioning, reduce energy consumption, and enhance
the Company's overall contribution to the society in the aspect

of emission reduction.

Consolidate the development of market in China and

proactively expand the international market

On the basis of market share within the PRC, the Company
will continue to increase its share in the international market.
Under the premises of consolidating the market of conventional
products, efforts will be devoted to expand markets for new
products. The Company will continue to maintain its leading
position in the market of conventional products in China,
and capitalize on the advantage of supplying generator units
in sets. This will ensure that the successful rate of tender
for 300MW and 600MW thermal power generator units in
an absolutely leading position, and the successful rate of
tender for T000MW thermal power generator units to reach
one third. Leading position in large and medium scale hydro

power market will be consolidated.

The Company will develop international market upon insisting
on the principles of project contracting and main equipment
export. Sales and marketing results will be consolidated and
lifted in traditional markets such as Asia, Africa and Middle
East. More efforts will be devoted to expand and consolidate

in emerging markets such as Russia, India and Brazil. With
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nuclear power as the focus of the State as well as the
global power generation industry, the Company as a whole
must cooperate to pursue breakthrough in the development
of nuclear power market. The organic combination of after
sales services with market expansion will be strengthened.
After sales service will become an integral part of the
Company's long-term development, and will also be organically
integrated with the upgrade of obsolete generator units and
the production of parts and components. Product mix will not
only be expanded, but more importantly, long-term and steady
strategic cooperation relationship will be established through
good after sales services. Valid resources in the Company will
be integrated for the study of establishing the organizational
structure and mode of operation for after sales services
under the Company and the marketing and sales system of
rapid response, operation flexibility, overall coordination and

remarkable effects that adapts to market needs.

. Devote additional efforts in proprietary innovation so as

to enhance core competitiveness

The Company will continue to leverage on the rich endowment in
leading technologies, and devote additional efforts to proprietary
innovation on the basis of introduction and absorption of
technologies. The technology innovation system and product
research platform will continue to improve. More efforts will
be devoted to investment in technologies. The pace for the
construction of infrastructure will speed up. A number of
prospective scientific research topics will be commenced with
priority, so that new products with promising prospects in the
market can be developed. This will provide solid assurance on
technologies for the long-term development of the Company.
Extensive and in-depth cooperation with tertiary education
institutions as well as research institutes within and outside
the PRC will be promoted. This will expand and enhance the
scope and sophistication in the development of new products.
The competitive edge of the Company’s technologies will
continue to increase. More efforts will be devoted to technology
innovation. The Company plans to invest Rmb709 million of funds
in 2008, an increase of 1.72% over the same period last year.
Absorption of advanced technologies introduced from abroad
will be strengthened, with the total absorption and control

of technologies introduced being assured. Emphasis will be
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given to achieve better results from technology introduction
and absorption as represented by the third generation AP1000
nuclear power technology. The Company will exercise control
over the critical technologies and core essentials in the steam
generator units and main pump generator units of nuclear
power island, gas turbine generator units of conventional
island, generator units and related auxiliary accessories.
Proprietary innovation will be bold so as to develop new
products. By tightly focusing on the homemade for super
critical, ultra super critical and large-scale air cooling thermal
generator units of 600MW and1000MW, a number of critical
technology issues will be resolved. The proprietary research
and development in design technology for axle-flow, flow-
through and pumped storage hydro power turbine generator
units will be explored proactively, so that the technological
standard of hydro power products will be enhanced. Apart
from the emphasis in proprietary development and innovation,
continuously enhancing the sophistication and level of the
technology dominating the Company’'s power generation
equipment products, the Company will also have to solve the
research in the accessories, water pump engine and valve of
large diameter and high diameter complementing in sets with
high capacity super critical and ultra super critical thermal
power generator units. New aspects such as petrochemical
capacitor, smoke and gas deNox and del-sulfur equipment
and desalting device, industrial flat ventilation machine,
large capacity high tower boiler engine will be developed.
IGCC clean coal fired power generation technology of high
efficiency and low pollution will be ranked as an important
strategic mission, so as to closely track the industry policies
and market development trend of the State. The Company
will proactively seek to cooperate with internationally leading
companies, and get prepared for accumulation of technologies
through leveraging on existing technology advantages and

integration of resources.

£002-900Z Hoday jenuuy paiwi] Auedwo) juswdinb3 semod uigieH H



H35£002-900C [= 7 ¥ B &) X0 & 2 OF (EECEE Su g

%gﬂiﬁgnﬁi_ $ﬁ(
Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BEREERER  MREAFYNFEHRRERE

ZZERZEEZRBEEERL - BEREE
2|J75EJZ$?%?E REEUEEN  TWEEK
EFNTHAREN HEIREREN &

BERMEMSERMIMBGETE - EEE
RE(CREERN  RARREERIEMHRF

fE o

2008F T EILHEIRE 10191870 » ES KA
NIEE

REIRERLZEMRMEBEFERE
246 BT (HAp - REFREHIBR171E
T REMMEBCISERL) EFEER
BEEEERBHRESR ﬁmﬂ =T hEFE
2009F5 AR EEEREHMZEMPINE
EE (&M -

ZEERHEREEZR Iéaéfeisuxés 8fE
JC - 2008 F5 AR EBA BRI
B 10ARERIZE Euasﬁ% ﬁ%ﬁ FR
TZEC1000MW )T im 2 B TE FRUERE S ©

REHMKERBARNELEBTEEE
0598  TERARBENKE EFE
&8 B BIRIKE

AL AR IR B A8 IRE0.828 T &
FREMERRBERRE -

2008F4 A 11 BN FR KB FRE

5. Accelerate the progress of major technological improvement

projects at high standard with stringent requirements

By tightly focusing on the theme to construct nuclear power
projects, the Company will ensure that the construction
and technology improvement works on the manufacturing
base for nuclear power island main equipment, gas turbine
generator units stator processing trial base, nuclear power
main pump generator units base, nuclear power valve base
will be completed as scheduled. Such projects will in turn
convert into production capacities as soon as possible, and
provide assurance to the development of nuclear power by
the Company.

In the year 2008, it is planned that Rmb1,019 million will
be invested. The funds will be applied to the following
projects:

Rmb246 million will be planned to invest in the project for
nuclear power main pump generator unit and nuclear power
valve (of which Rmb171 million for nuclear power main pump
generator unit and Rmb75 million for nuclear power valve).
It is expected that the factory premise and auxiliary support
facilities will be completed during the year. It is expected that
production for nuclear power main pump generator unit and
nuclear power valve can commence before May 2009.

Rmb380 million will be planned to invest in the project for the
manufacturing and construction of nuclear power island main
equipment. By the end of May 2008 the manufacturing capacity
for ordinary capacitor will be formed. By the end of October
the manufacturing capacity for nuclear power products will be
formed. By the end of the year the manufacturing capacity of
1000MW gas turbine generator unit core will be formed.

Rmb59 million will be planned to invest in the homemade
project for large-scale pumped storage units. This will be
applied to the completion of the project, and it is expected
that production of the whole project will commence production

during the year.
Rmb82 million will be invested in large-scale gas turbine project
and it is expected that the whole project will commence

production during the year.

11th April, 2008, Harbin, People's Republic of China
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DIRECTORS
Executive directors

Mr. Gong Jing-kun, 50, senior engineer and with a master
degree, now chairman of HPEGC and chairman of the Company.
Mr. Gong graduated from Shenyang Institute of Machinery and
Electronics in 1982 and joined in HPEGC in the same year. Later
on, he studied in Shanghai Fudan University, majoring in economic
management and was conferred the master degree. Mr. Gong
joined in HPEGC in 1982. Mr. Gong has been vice director of
production division, vice manager of production department,
manager of hydropower workshop in former Harbin Electric
Machinery Works of the Group, and general manager assistant
and deputy general manager of the Electric Machinery Company
of the Group. Mr. Gong was appointed as chairman of Archeng
Relay Group Company and Archeng Relay Company Limited in
1999, in August 2000, he was appointed as vice chairman and
general manager of HPEGC and in September 2000, Mr. Gong
was appointed as vice chairman of the Company. In May 20086,
he was appointed as chairman of HPEGC and on 29th September,

chairman of the Company.

Mr. Zhao Ke-fei, 52, senior economist and with a doctor degree,
now vice chairman of the Company and vice chairman and general
manager of HPEGC. Mr. Zhao graduated from Northeast Heavy
Machinery Institute in 1982, studied in Management Institute
of Harbin Institute of Technology in 1987 and got the master
degree. Mr. Zhao obtained the doctor degree in management
in Harbin Engineering University in June, 2006. He joined in
HPEGC in 1982, was the engineer, vice director of organization
department and vice director of turbine generator workshop in
former Harbin Electric Machinery Works of the Group. He began
to act as director of organization department of HPEGC in 1992
and standing vice secretary of the Communist Party Committee of
the Electric Machinery Company of the Group in 1994, managing
deputy general manager of the Electric Machinery Company of
the Group in December 1995. He was appointed as director of
HPEGC in August 1997 executive director and general manager
of the Company in October 1997 In November 1999, he was
appointed as vice chairman of HPEGC and in January 2000

appointed as vice chairman of the Company.
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Mr. Qu Da-zhuang, 51, researcher & senior engineer and with
a doctor degree, now managing director of the Company and
deputy general manager of HPEGC. Mr. Qu graduated from
Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautic in July 1982. He
studied at the department of applied mathematics and mechanics
of Harbin Institute of Technology from September 1984 and
graduated with a master degree, subsequently obtained a doctor
degree in astronautic engineering and mechanics in September
1993. Mr. Qu has been deputy director and vice superintendent
of planning office of the research institute of Harbin Electrical
Machinery Plant; deputy general manager of the Harbin Electrical
Machinery Company Limited and superintendent of the research
institute. In August 2000, he had been deputy general manager
of HPEGC. In 2002, he was deputy general manager of HPEGC;
chairman of the Board and general manager of Harbin Turbine
Company Limited. He was appointed as general manager of this
Company on 8th September, 2006, and managing director on
29th September, 2006.

Mr. Duan Hong-yi, 45, senior economist and master of business
administration, now deputy general manager of HPEGC. Mr. Duan
graduated from Harbin Electrical Machinery College in 1982,
majoring in mechanics, and joined in HPEGC in the same year.
Mr. Duan has been a comprehensive planner and vice manager
of planning department of former Boiler Works of the Group.
He participated in the reorganization of HPEGC as shareholding
Company and issuing and listing of the Company’'s shares in
1994. He has been vice director and director of planning and
accounting department, vice chief accountant of the Company
and supervisor, deputy general manager of the Turbine Company
of the Group and vice chairman of Harbin Power Technology &
Trade Incorporation of the Group since 1995. He was appointed

as deputy general manager of HPEGC in August 2000.
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Mr. Shang Zhong-fu, 47 senior engineer and master of business
administration, now executive director and deputy general manager
of the Company. Mr. Shang graduated from Harbin Institute of
Technology in 1982, majoring in steam turbine, and joined in
HPEGC in the same year. He has been assistant section head
and deputy head of the Design Research Institute, vice chief
economist and vice chief engineer of former Turbine Works of
the Group. In October 1998, he was appointed as deputy general
manager of the Turbine Company of the Group and in November
1999, chairman and general manager of the Turbine Company of
the Group. In September 2000 he was executive director of the
Company and in February 2002, appointed as deputy general

manager of the Company.

Mr. Wu Wei-zhang, 46, senior engineer and with a doctor degree,
now executive director of the Company and chairman and general
manager of the Electric Machinery Company of the Group. Mr. Wu
graduated from Qinghua University, majoring in hydropower and
was conferred master degree in 1988. Mr. Wu obtained a doctor
degree in thermal energy engineering in Qinghua University and
joined in HPEGC in 1988. Mr. Wu was deputy director of turbine
department of Electrical Machinery Institute and deputy head of
Electrical Machinery Institute, deputy manager of hydropower
workshop, vice chief engineer and vice manager of product design
department of the Electric Machinery Company of the Group.
Mr. Wu has been the deputy general manager of the Electric
Machinery Company of the Group since 1999, in October 2000,
was appointed as chairman and general manager of the Electric
Machinery Company of the Group. He was appointed as executive

director of the Company in September 2000.
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Independent directors

Mr. Zhou Dao-jiong, 75, independent director of the company and
chairman of Tao Xing-zhi Fund of China, chairman of Investment
Committee of China, advisor to Society of Finance of China and
Society of Market Economic of China, and part-time professor
in Beijing University, People's University of China, Central
South Economic and Finance University, Northeast Economic
and Finance University and Southwest Economic and Finance
University. Mr. Zhou joined in work in 1950 and has been the
head of Finance Department of Anhui provincial government and
secretary-general of provincial government, president of China
Construction Bank and chairman of China Investment Bank, deputy
executive director of Securities Committee of State Council,
deputy president of State Development Bank and chairman of
Securities Supervisory & Management Committee of China. He
was appointed as independent director of the Company since
September 2000.

Ms. Ding Xue-mei, 49, professor and with a doctor degree,
now deputy executive director of Graduate School of Harbin
Institute of Technology. Ms. Ding graduated from Harbin Institute
of Technology in 1986 and was conferred master degree. In
1991, she studied in Lausanne Federal Institute of Industry of
Swiss, engaged in research work in this institute after she was
conferred doctor degree in 1995. Dr. Ding has been appointed
as assistant professor, professor, tutor for doctoral candidates
in Harbin Institute of Technology, head of training department of
Graduate School and deputy director of Graduate School. She
was appointed as the executive deputy director in 1998. Dr. Ding
is now the executive chairman of Joint Conference for Directors
of Graduate School of China and vice chairman of Harbin Science
& Technology Association. She was appointed as independent

director of the Company since September 2000.
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Mr. Jia Cheng-bing, 66, senior engineer and with a bachelor
degree, now deputy managing director of China Machinery
Industry Federation, president of China Foundry Association.
Mr. Jia graduated from Hefei University of Technology, majoring
in foundry. He joined in work in July 1965. He has been deputy
section chief, section chief of Ministry of Machinery Electronics
Industry and Ministry of Machine Building Industry; department
head of Human Resources and director of the general office of
Ministry of Machine Building Industry; Party commissioner of the
Ministry of Machine Building Industry. In March 2001, chairman
of the Supervisory Committee for various large State Council
organizations (China National Materials Industry Group, China State
Shipbuilding Corporation, The State Development and Investment
Corp.). Since February 2006, he was appointed as deputy managing
directors of China Machinery Industry Federation and president
of China Foundry Association. He was appointed as independent

director of the Company since September 2006.

Ms. Li He-jun, 64, senior economist and with a bachelor degree,
now vice chairperson of the Board of Southwest Aluminum (Group)
Co. Ltd, vice chairperson of the Board of Shanxi Hancheng Coal
Company, executive director of China Association of Women
Entrepreneurs and committee member of the Financial Advisory
Committee. Ms. Li graduated from Central Institute of Finance
and Economics (currently known as Central University of Finance
and Economics), majoring in finance and accounting. She joined
in work in August 1966. She has been deputy section chief and
section chief of Henan Province Planning Commission, vice
president and Party’s vice secretary of China Construction Bank
Henan Branch. In 1993, she was president and Party secretary
of China Construction Bank Henan Branch, and director of Henan
Provincial Investment Association. In 1999, she was the chief
commissioner of the Execute Commission and Audit Commission
for China Cinda Asset Management Corporation. Since 2004, she
was appointed as commissioner of China Cinda Asset Management
Corporation Expert Advisory Commission, vice chairperson of the
Board of Southwest Aluminum (Group) Co. Ltd, vice chairperson of
the Board of Shanxi Hangcheng Coal Company, executive director
of China Association of Women Entrepreneurs, commissioner
of Finance Inquiry Commission and senior advisor for Lehman
Brothers Asia Holding Inc. She was appointed as independent

director of the Company since September 2006.
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Mr. Jiang Kui, 56, senior engineer (professor level) and with a
bachelor degree, now general manager of Heilongjiang Power Co.
Ltd. Mr. Jiang graduated from Northeast Agricultural University.
He joined in work in 1969. He has been technician of Heilongjiang
Electric Power Design Institute; deputy section manager, section
manager, deputy section chief of Heilongjiang Electric Power
Industry Bureau, education section; deputy director of the education
and training department; director of the general manager's office,
deputy chief financial official, and deputy general manager of
the Heilongjiang Power Co. Ltd. He was appointed as general
manager of Heilongjiang Power Co. Ltd. in November 2005. He
was appointed as independent director of the Company since
September 2006.

SUPERVISORS
Supervisors representing shareholders

Mr. Lang En-qi, 62, senior engineer with a master degree. He has
been chairman of the Supervisory Committee of the Company.
Mr. Lang graduated from Harbin Aviation Industry School in 1968.
Later on, he graduated from Chinese Academy Industry of Social
Science with a master degree, majoring in currency & bank. Mr.
Lang joined in HPEGC in 1968. He has been workshop manager,
director of Organization Department of former Turbine Works of
the Group, manager of Turbine Auxiliaries Company, vice factory
director and assistant secretary of the Communist Party Committee
of the Turbine Company. He was appointed as general manager
of HTC Industry Development Company of HPEGC in 1994, and
managing deputy general manager of the Turbine Company of the
Group in December 1995. In November 1999, director, assistant
secretary of the Communist Party Committee, secretary of the
Disciplinary Committee of HPEGC and assistant secretary of the
Communist Party Committee and secretary of the Disciplinary
Committee of the Company. In January 2000, he was appointed
as chairman of the Supervisory Committee of the Company. In
March 2008, Mr. Lang was not as supervisor of the Company

any longer for retirement.
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Mr.Wang Zhi-sen, 57 senior engineer and with a bachelor degree.
Mr. Wang graduated from Qinghua University, majoring in electrical
engineering. Mr. Wang joined in work in October 1968. He was
deputy division chief of Enterprise Cadre Administration Office
of Department of Cadre under Ministry of Machine Industry,
deputy division chief of general office of department of personal
and labor under Ministry of Machine Industry. He was director
of information sector of China Electrical Engineering News in
1989, head and secretary of Party Committee of Instrument
and Meter Technology Institute under Ministry of Machinery and
Electronics Industry in 1992; deputy director of general office
of Ministry of Internal Trade in January 1995. He was secretary
of Party Committee, deputy general manager of China National
Agricultural Machinery Corporation; director of State Commission
for Economic Restructuring in 1996.He was secretary of Party
Committee, and secretary of Discipline Committee of Huaxing
Products Corporation in 1998; director, secretary of Party
Committee, and secretary of Discipline Committee of China
Huaxing Group in 2001. In June 2007, he was appointed as one
member of the Company’s Standing Communist Party Committee
and secretary of Discipline Committee of Harbin Power Equipment
Group Corporation, simultaneously as a one member of the
Company's Standing Communist Party Committee and secretary
of Discipline Committee of the Company. He was appointed as

chairman of the Supervisory of Company in March 2008.

Mr. Yang Xu, 44, senior engineer and with a master degree,
director of enterprise management and development department
of the Boiler Company of the Group. Mr. Yang graduated from
Jilin Industry University in 1986 and joined in HPEGC in the same
year. He has been enterprise management staff in the enterprise
management department, secretary of general manager office,
assistant director of enterprise management and development
department of the Boiler Company of the Group. In 2004, he
was appointed as deputy director of enterprise management and
development department. In 2004, he was appointed as director

of enterprise management and development department.
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Supervisors representing staff and workers

Ms. Lu Chun-lian, 49, senior engineer and with a bachelor degree,
now supervisor representing staff and workers of the Company
and head of coil factory of the Electric Machinery Company of
HPEGC. Ms. Lu graduated from Harbin Institute of Electrical
Engineering in 1982 and joined in HPEGC in the same year. She
has been an engineer and deputy director of insulation material
Research Section under Electrical Machinery Research Institute
and director of technology department of coil factory in the Electric
Machinery Company. In 2002, Ms. Lu was elected as head of

coil workshop in the Electric Machinery Company.

Mr. Gao Xu-guang, 37 senior engineer and with a bachelor
degree, now director of corporate development research center of
Harbin Turbine Company Limited. Mr. Gao graduated from Harbin
Institute of Technology with a bachelor degree. He joined in work
in July 1994. He has been deputy director of the general manager
office and the secretary of the Board of Harbin Turbine Company
Limited. He was appointed as director of corporate development

research center of the Company in May 2004.

Independent supervisors

Mr. Chen Si, 40, senior accountant and with a master degree,
certified public valuer, now vice chairman of the Board for
DeveChina Co. Ltd. Mr. Chen graduated from Xiamen University
with a master degree in statistics. He joined in work in July
1990. He has been cadre officials of Beijing Municipal Statistics
Bureau and National State Asset Management Bureau-Asset Value
Center; valuer of the Assets Evaluation Association of China;
deputy director of operation department of Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He was appointed as vice chairman
of the Board for DeveChina Co. Ltd in February 2002.
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SENIOR MANAGERS

Mr. Zhang Hai-quan, 47, senior engineer and master of business
administration, now deputy general manager of the Company. Mr.
Zhang graduated from Harbin Institute of Electrical Engineering in
1984, and joined in HPEGC in the same year. He has been engineer
of the enginery repairing workshop, secretary and assistant director
of the Communist Party Committee Office of former Boiler Works
of HPEGC. In 1994, Mr. Zhang participated in the reorganization
of HPEGC and share issuing and listing of the Company. Since
November 1994, he has been appointed as vice director of the
general manager office, vice director of planning department and
director of enterprise administration department, and director of
auditing and law department of the Boiler Company of HPEGC. In
1998, he was transferred acting as one member of the Group's
and the Company’s Standing Communist Party Committee and
director of organization department. In 1999, Mr. Zhang was
appointed as secretary of the Communist Party Committee and
vice chairman of Archeng Relay Group Company and Archeng
Relay Company Limited, one of the Group’'s subsidiaries. He
has been appointed as deputy general manager of the Company
since October 2000.

Mr. Feng Yong-qgiang, 45, senior political-work master and master
of business administration, now deputy general manager of the
Company and secretary of the Communist Party Committee and
vice chairman of the Boiler Company of the Group. Mr. Feng
graduated from Harbin Institute of Electrical Engineering in
1985, majoring in electrical engineering, and joined in HPEGC
in the same year. He was the secretary of the Communist
Party Committee Office, secretary of Youth League, secretary
and factory director of piping workshop, and factory director of
heavy vessel workshop of former Boiler Works of HPEGC. He
was deputy secretary of the Communist Party Committee and
secretary of the Supervisory Committee of the Boiler Company
in 1997. He was the standing committee and deputy mayor of
the city of Tongliao in the Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region
in November 2001. He was appointed as deputy secretary and
vice chairman of the Communist Party Committee of the Boiler

Company in November 20083.
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Mr. Liu Zhi-quan, 40, senior accountant and master of business
administration, now deputy general manager. Mr. Liu graduated
from Harbin Institute of Technology, majoring in industrial
accounting with a bachelor degree. He subsequently obtained his
MBA qualification from the same university. He joined in work
in September 1991. He has been the assistant for the section
chief, deputy section chief, section chief of finance department,
chief account official and section chief of finance department of
the Boiler Company of HPEGC. He was appointed as the deputy
general manager of the Boiler Company in April 2001. Mr. Liu
was appointed as vice general manager of the Company since
September 2006.

Mr. Han Jian-wei, 52, researcher & senior engineer and with a
bachelor degree, now deputy general manager of the Company. Mr.
Han joined in work in October 1973, and graduated from Harbin
Institute of Technology in 1982 and was conferred the bachelor
degree. He has been designer of design division, installation
worker and deputy section chief of user service division, director
of production division of Harbin Boiler Company Ltd of HPEGC. He
has been vice chief economist, vice general manager, chairman,
general manager of HBC. Ha was appointed as deputy general

manager of the Company since 26th December, 2007.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ma Sui, 51, associate professor and master of business
administration, now company secretary of the Company and
director of office. Mr. Ma joined in work in 1976. He graduated
from Northeast Heavy Machinery Institute in 1982 and joined
in HPEGC in the same year. He used to work at the Company's
electrical machinery plant on staff training and corporate planning.
He has been deputy chancellor of the Staff Collage, deputy office
director of the Company, department head of the corporate
planning department, deputy chief financial official, etc. He was
appointed as the director of office in May 2003, and director of the

secretarial bureau of the board of directors from May 2006.
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The Directors are pleasure to submit 2007 annual report and
audited financial statements for the year ended 31st December
2007 of the Company.

PRINCIPLE ACTIVITIES

The Company and its principal subsidiaries are mainly engaged
in manufacturing and sales of various kinds of power equipments
and power station engineering services, which are set out in

Note 6 to the financial statements.

All the activities of the Group are based in the PRC, where 92.2

per cent of the Group's turnover is derived from.

The export sales of the Group for the year ended 31st December
2007 amounted to US$295.30 million, representing 7.8 per cent
of the Group's total turnover for the year. The Group’'s export

markets mainly include Asian and African countries.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

The Company has seven principal subsidiaries. Harbin Electrical
Machinery Co., Ltd is mainly in the field of manufacture and
sales of hydro generator units and steam turbine generator units.
Harbin Boiler Co., Ltd is mainly in the field of manufacture and
Ltd is

mainly in the field of manufacture and sales on steam turbine for

sales on boilers for power stations. Harbin Turbine Co.,
power stations. Harbin Power Engineering Co., Ltd is mainly in
the field of the turn-key construction of power station projects
and complete set of power station equipment.AEEE (X2
B) SREEAFRAT is mainly in the field of manufacture and
assembly on equipments such as nuclear power, gas turbine and
heavy-duty thermal power. BEEE#BRXEREHERET A
is mainly in the field of manufacture and sales on medium-to-
heavy-duty AC/DC motors and nuclear power main pump motors
and MEEEBREZTHBFIEGRAF) is mainly in the field of

manufacture and sales on valves for power stations.

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries for the year ended
31st December 2007 are set out in Note 43 to the financial

statements.
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FINANCIAL RESULTS AND DISTRIBUTION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2007
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 64

of the annual report.

The Directors propose the distribution of profit after taxation and

minority interests for 2007 as follows:

1. To transfer Rmb37.98 million to the statutory surplus

reserve.

2. The Directors propose a dividend of Rmb0.091 per share
for shareholders who registered on shareholder’ list before
6th May 2008; payment of dividends totally amounted to
Rmb125.2893 million. Shareholders of H share will be paid
in Hong Kong dollar; the exchange rate used is based on
average closing rate of the People's Bank of China during
the five days preceding the date of 11th April 2008, which is
Rmb1 for HK$1.112. The dividend for every H share will be
HK$0.1012.

3. The Register of members of the Company will be closed
from 6th May 2008 to 5th June 2008, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares can be registered.
Shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members
on 6th May 2008 shall be entitled to present in the meeting
and the dividend payment for the year 2007.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Details of directors and supervisors are set out in the Section
“Director, Supervisors and Senior Managers” of the annual

report.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGERS’
INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31st December, 2007, none of the directors, supervisors
and senior management of the Company had any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures (as
the case may be) of the Company and/or of any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
was required to be notified to the Company and the HKSE
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interest and short position which any such director, supervisor
or senior management is taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which was required to be entered in
the Register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO or which was required to be notified to the Company and
the HKSE pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listing Companies as contained in Appendix 10

to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

There are service contracts between every director, supervisor
and the Company, which will expire by 29th September 2009.
Besides this, there are no existing and suggesting service
contracts between every director, supervisor and any member

company of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

None of the director or supervisor of the Company has any
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in the contracts
of significance, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries

is a party during the year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Details of the salaries and bonuses of the directors or supervisors
of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2007 are set

out in Note 11 to the financial statements.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID PERSONNEL

The five highest paid personnel of the Company during the year

are all directors and supervisors.
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RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the retirement and benefit scheme are set out in Note

38 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of

the Group are set out in Note 14 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution are Rmb5,836.19
million until 31st December 2007. Movements in the reserves of
the Group and the Company during the year are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity to the financial

statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The financial highlights of the Group for the last five years are set

out in the Section “Financial Highlights” to the annual report.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST COSTS CAPITALISED

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group are set

out in Note 31 to the financial statements.

Interest capitalized by the Group during the year amounted to

Rmb0.25 million in respect of construction in-progress.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

As at 2nd March 2007, the Board of Directors of the Company
issued 102.355 million H shares under the general mandate of
the 2005 Annual General Meeting, at an issue price of HK$10
per share, to raise HK$1.002 billion.

Besides this, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed

securities.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association or PRC Law, which would require the
Company to issue new shares to the existing shareholders

according to their respective proportions of shareholding.

MAJOR LITIGATION

Harbin Boiler Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of the Company, lodged a
complaint against N TE# M E GBR A Flat court for the
economic loss caused to the Company due to its provision of
unqualified large-diameter tubes and demanded the company
to indemnify a direct economic loss of Rmb32,951,000. Z=/H
T E#%E AR A Fbrought a counter-accusation against the
Company for an outstanding loan of Rmb23.49 million. Currently,
the case is still under processing. Besides this, the Group was
not engaged in other major litigation of material importance

during the year.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The material contracts of the Group for the year are detailed
in the Sections “Management Discussion and Analysis” and

“Disclosure of Significant Events” of the annual report.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

1. The aggregate amount of purchases during the period
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers represented
10.81 per cent of the Group's total purchases. Among which
the largest supplier is Mitsubishi Heavy Industries Ltd. of
Japan, presenting 2.79 per cent.

2. 20.75 per cent of the total turnover of the Group during the
period was attributable to the Group's five largest customers.
Amongst which BI&E 2 /I8 & QX 7] was the largest customer,

accounting for 6.29 per cent of the total turnover.

3. None of the directors, supervisors, their associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of
the directors own more than 5 per cent of the Company's
share capital) has any interest in above mentioned suppliers

or customers.
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PROCEEDS FROM THE H SHARES ISSUE

The use of listing proceeds of the Company for the period details
in the Section “Management Discussion and Analysis” of the

annual report.

ENTRUSTED DEPOSITS AND OVERDUE TIME DEPOSITS

As at 31st December, 2007, the Company had no entrusted
deposits in commercial banks or non-bank financial institutions

and had no due deposits that had not been withdrawn.

INCOME TAX AND EXPORT VAT REBATE

According to provisions of Notice on Certain Preferential Tax
Policies on Enterprise Income Tax ( (ERCEMEHRE TER
KR A)EEN) ) issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration for Taxation on 29th March 1994, enterprises
within High and New Technology Industrial Zones approved by
the State Council shall be entitled to income tax at a reduced
tax rate of 15 per cent, which has been the tax rate applied by
the Group. Since the Group meets the requirements of related
laws and regulations, the Board considers it is appropriate for
the major subsidiaries of the Group to apply the 15 per cent

income tax rate.

In accordance with regulations of the State Administration for
Taxation, the rate for tax rebate of the Group's new export products

contracts is 13 per cent since 15th October 2003.

According to Regulations on the Issues about Increasing VAT Rebate
Scope in Northeast Area issued by the PRC Ministry of Finance
and the State Tax Bureau in 14th September, 2004, the VAT of
part of northeast areas companies (including the Company) turned
from production type to consumption type, which enlarged the
VAT rebate scope. By 1st, July, 2004, the income tax for actually
capital asserts purchased products, purchased products for self
construction (include restructure and construction extension) or

tax payable labor project can be rebated.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the connected transactions, see the details in Note 39 to

the financial statements of the annual report.

CONFIRMATION ON CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Independent Directors of the Company have, in such capacity,
reviewed the connected transactions (as defined in the Listing
Rule) referred to in Note 39 to the financial statements and
confirmed that:

1. Such transactions have been entered into by the Company in

the ordinary and usual course of its business; and

2. Such transactions have been entered into either (I) on normal
commercial terms (which expression will be applied by
reference to transactions of a similar nature and to be made
by similar entities with PRC) or (Il) (where there is no available
comparison) on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as

the shareholders of the Company are concerned; and

3. Such transactions have been entered into either (I) in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreements governing such
transactions or (ll) (where there is no such agreement) on terms

no less favorable than terms available to third parties.

THE CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS INDEPENDENCE

The Company has already received the Annual Letter of
Confirmation from every independent non-executive director
on their independence. Their independence accord to every
independence index issued in article 3.13 in Listing Rules and

they are independent person.
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SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31st December 2007, the share capital structure of the
Company comprised of 1,376,806,000 shares, of which 701,235,000
shares were held by the promoter (representing 50.93 per cent
of the entire share capital) and 675,571,000 shares were held
by overseas H shares investors (representing 49.07 per cent of

the entire share capital).

NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS

Details of the Company's registered shareholders as at 31st

December 2007 were as follows:

Holders of State Shares (held by the Promoter) 1
Holders of H Shares 63
Total number of shareholders 64
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TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2007, the top ten registered shareholders

who hold the most shares were as follows:

HRESE
g i Percentage
BEZE Number of of Shares fBst
Name of Shareholders Shares Holdings Note
BRESREER 701,235,000 50.93% BB A AR
Harbin Power Plant Equipment Group Corporation state shares
HKSCC Nominees Limited 674,388,598 48.98% HA%
H shares
LAM MAN LAI 250,000 0.02% H A%
H shares
CHEUNG YUM TIN 200,000 0.01% H A%
H shares
HO CHI KUN 100,000 0.01% H A%
H shares
NG SIU HANG 100,000 0.01% H A%
H shares
YIH SIU LAl HAR 50,000 0.00% H A%
H shares
YIP KWAI WA 50,000 0.00% H A%
H shares
WONG YIU POOI 34,000 0.00% H A%
H shares
POON BO WING ANDY 26,000 0.00% H A%

H shares
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INTEREST'S INTHE SHARE CAPITAL ANALYSIS OF HOLDERS
OF H SHARES (ACCORDING TO SHAREHOLDERS LIST AT
31ST DECEMBER, 2007)

HESETHR

AE RIS B9t

Scope Number of Number of Percentage to

gE (number of shares) shareholders share Holding Issued H Shares

1-1000 1-1000 4 402 0.00%

1,001-5,000 1,001-5,000 26 70,000 0.01%

5,001-10,000 5,001-10,000 15 132,000 0.02%

10,001-100,000 10,001-100,000 15 530,000 0.08%

100,001-A £ 100,001 above 8 674,838,598 99.89%

a5t Total 63 675,571,000 100%
=¥ MODEL CODE
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The Company, having made specific enquiry, confirms that all
members of the Board complied with the Model Code set out in

Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules throughout the period.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied throughout the year of 2007 with all
code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance

Practices contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 7th March 2008, the Company convened a Special General
Meeting and elected Mr. Wang Zhi-sen as the Supervisor of the
Supervisory Committee. The Company convened a provisional
meeting and elected Mr. Wang Zhi-sen as the Chairman of the

Supervisory Committee at the same day.
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AUDITORS

The current PRC auditor of the Company is China Rightson YueHua
Certified Public Accountants Company Limited, and the Hong
Kong auditor is Yuehua (Hong Kong) CPA Limited.

By order of the Board
Gong Jing-kun

Chairman

11th April, 2008
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To all shareholders:

For the year ended 31st December, 2007 (the year), all members
of the Supervisory Committee (“the Committee”) of Harbin
Power Equipment Company Limited (“the Company”) carefully
fulfilled their Supervisory Committee functions in accordance
with the regulations of the PRC Company Law, the Listing Rules
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Articles
of Association of the Company. The Committee has reviewed
documents submitted by the Company and supervised the
Company's activities and the manager level members’ work
performance by way of participating in the General Meeting and
the Company’'s Board of Directors Meetings and convening up
Supervisory Committee Meetings. In addition, the Committee
participated actively in significant events of the Company, such
as the Company's production and management etc. and gave a
lot of positive opinions and suggestions, which pushed forward

the Company’s work to smoothly develop.

For the Company’'s work during the period under review, the

Committee presents the following independent opinions:

1. During the year under review, the Company strictly complied
with the nation’s laws and regulations, operated in accordance
with the procedures regulating listing companies, and duly
executed various resolutions passed at the shareholders’
meeting. With the aim of increasing cost effectiveness and
overall competitiveness, the Company fully implemented the
scientific approach of development, insisted on the strategic
policy of sustainable development. Under the effort of all
the staff of the Company and its subsidiaries, the Company
achieved the new highest targets in the output of products,
total profits, market development and new product manufacture

etc., with a satisfactory business performance.
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2. The Committee is aware that the directors, the managers and
other senior managers have actively carried out their duties in
the best interests of the shareholders. In addition, they carried
out carefully the resolutions and decisions from the General
Meetings and the Board of Directors. They have not abused
their powers to act against the regulations of national laws,
rules and the Article of Association of the Company interests
of the Company and rights and interests of the shareholders

and employees.

3. The Committee has reviewed the Company's financial system
and financial situations and got the conclusion that the
Company's organization and system of the financial section
are complete and the financial work was operated step by step
according to inner control system and the financial management
system. The proposed annual financial report and dividend
scheme by the Board of Directors, for approval of the Annual
General Meeting, objectively and comprehensively reflected
the operation results and asset condition of the Company.
Both interests of shareholders and the Company's long-term
development have been taken into account in the dividend
scheme. Statutory reserve and public welfare fund provided
in the year were in accordance with provisions of laws and

regulations, and Articles of Association of the Company.

4. The Supervisory Committee reviewed the report of the Board.
It is of the opinion that the report gives an objective and true
picture of the works performed by the Company during the

year.

The Committee sincerely appreciates trust and support from
every employee of the Company and shareholders. With positively
exploring new supervisory approach and method, establishing
detailed supervisory and inspect method, the Committee will
perform supervisory function better and work hard for achieving

production and operation target in 2008 of the Company.
For and on behalf of the Supervisory Committee
Wang zhi-sen

Chairman
Harbin, the People's Republic of China, 11th April, 2008
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The Company has improved and perfected the company's corporate
governing structure and standardized the Company’s operation
through strictly complying with the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Securities Law of the People’s Republic of

China and the relevant provisions of China Securities Regulatory

Commission.

During the year 2007, the Company fully complied with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited Appendix XIV: Code on Corporate Governance

Practices.

EERE ORGANIZATION CHART
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Department and Department Department Department Department General Secretarial Department  Department  Corporate Department
Accounting Manager Bureau Culture
Department Office of the Department
Board of

Directors
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SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDERS®’ GENERAL
MEETING

The Company protects shareholder's interests, treats all shareholders
equally, and initiates participation of shareholders in corporate
governance and management. Shareholders as the owner of
the Company enjoy rights as laws and regulations provided and
shoulder commensurate obligations. The shareholders enjoy rights
to information and rights to decision-making for the Company’s
important matters. The General Meeting of Shareholders is the
organ of authority of the Company, and it exercises its functions
and power according to laws. In approving connected transactions,
the shareholder with common interests should give up to vote
at the General Meeting.

The Harbin Power Plant Equipment Group Corporation, a stated-
owned company registered in the People’s Republic of China, is

the controlling shareholder of the Company.

In 2007, the Company had an Annual General Meeting.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The major duties of the Board of Director are to exercise the
discretion in management decision of the Company according
to the authorization by the Shareholders’ General meeting with
respect to the development strategies, management structure,
investment and financing, planning and financial control, which

are set out in details in the Articles of Assocation.

1. Composition

The Board of Directors is the fifth Board of Directors of the
Company since its establishment, which is composed of
eleven Directors, five of which are independent Directors.
The Directors each has a term of three years calculated from
29th September, 2006; their term of office expires on 29th
September, 2009.
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Positions of the Chairperson of the Board of Directors
and the General Manager are held by different individuals;
their responsibility and duty are distinct and separate. The
Chairperson of the Board of Directors presides over meetings
of the Board of Directors and reviews on the implementation
of resolutions passed by the Board of Directors. The General
Manager is responsible for management and coordination
of the operation of the Company, implementation of the
resolutions passed by the Board of Directors and making

decisions on a daily basis.

Biographies of the members of the Board of Directors are
included in the Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

section of this Annual Report.

. Independent Directors

This session of the Company's Board of Directors has five
independent Directors. All the independent Directors are
familiar with the powers and responsibilities of the Directors
and independent Directors of a listed company. During the
reporting period, all the independent Directors attended
the meetings of Directors with the attitude of prudent and
responsible; they fully utilized their experiences and specialties,
contributed greatly toward the improvement and perfection
of the corporate governance mechanism and the important
decision making processes; they also provided pertinent,
objective advices in regard to important decisions and connected
transactions of the Company, further standardized the decision
making process of the Board of Directors and making this
process more scientific, therefore protected the interests of

the company and the shareholders as a whole.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of

the independent Directors about his/her independence.
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3. Meetings of the Board of Directors

During the year, six Board of Directors’ meetings were hold
to discuss the overall strategies, investment plans, operation
and financial performance of the Company. The independent
Directors have no dissenting opinions regarding any of the
Company's resolutions. Attendances of the meetings are as
follows:

FEE2MEEZRE FEHEOR) HEx
EENE Attendance Attendance in Attendance
Name of Director Required (No.) Person (No.) Ratio
BmBEEE Mr. Gong Jing-kun 6 6 100%
HETE IS A Mr. Zhao Ke-fei 6 3 50%
=N Mr. Qu Da-zhuang 6 6 100%
Bt oA Mr. Duan Hong-yi 6 5 83%
R fELE Mr. Shang Zhong-fu 6 6 100%
REERE Mr. Wu Wei-zhang 6 5 83%
BBk E Mr. Zhou Dao-jiong 6 5 83%
BRI E Mr. Jia Cheng-bing 6 4 67 %
TREBELL Ms. Li He-jun 6 4 67 %
TEELZT Ms. Ding Xue-mei 6 3 50%
= BiHE Mr. Jiang Kui 6 4 67 %

MEEETREBRERAANE RBEIFAR
EXSVRBTNEE EEREMISE
BEMNHEBEER MRMBF - AREREE
BRESZBE REEFSNIEFBMA
ERATURERNER  ERBURE
B ARREFRNEFZTGTEEZEEE
BERBTHFELEFTBELEERBRER
% B BEAENSIEE R AR RIRE

o

RRBIERAT B S X H P LR A
B LETRARERETESFRINELE
SRAMESRAREEZNRESR - NAT
ERAMEBEESFHIEER MMEEFCHER
EHREHANEE 2B K LETARES
ETEF R ZIZESTA) o

The relevant information and current development of the statutory,
supervisory and other continuous responsibilities of the Company’s
Board of Directors can be obtained by all Directors through the
Secretary of the Company in a timely fashion, so as all Directors
understand his/her duties, and the procedures of the Board of
Directors are properly implemented and applicable laws and
regulations are correctly complied. The Directors and the Board
of Directors’ special committees have the right to appoint
independent professional organizations for their service according
to the requirement of their duties; the reasonable costs incurred
in those occasions are born by the Company.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies set out in Appendix
X of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as a model code for Directors of
the company. Specific enquiries have been made of all Directors,
who have confirmed their compliance with the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies during
the reporting period.
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SPECIAL COMMITTEES UNDER BOARD

The Company has established four Special Committees, namely the
audit committee, the Remuneration committee, the nominations
committee and the strategy development committee; their

members consist of Directors.

The Audit Committee of the fifth session of the Board of Directors
includes: Li He-jun, Ding Xue-mei, and Duan Hong-yi. Two-third of
the members of the Audit Committee are independent Directors
and independent Director Li He-jun is the chairperson of the
Committee, as in accordance with the stipulation of the Listing
Rule, Article 3.21. During the year, the Audit Committee held two
meetings, and had reviewed the Group's annual and semi-annual

performance reports and Financial Reports.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Company’s Supervisory Committee consists of five supervisors,
of which two supervisors are representing staff and workers and

one is independent supervisor.

(A) The Supervisory Committee Meeting in the period under

review:

The Supervisory Committee held three meetings in the period

under review, the main contents of which are as follows:

1.  The Second Meeting of the Fifth Term of Supervisory
Committee was held on 20th April, 2007, which passed
the Company'’s report of Supervisory Committee, Audited
Financial Reports and Annual Report for the year
2006.

2. The Third Meeting of the Fifth Term of Supervisory
Committee was held on 10th August, 2007, which passed
the resolutions on the Company’s Interim Audited
Financial Reports and Interim Reports for the first half
of 2007.

3. On 7th March, 2008, the Company held the extraordinary
meeting of the Supervisory Committee, and elected
Mr. Wang Zhixin as Chairman of the Supervisory

Committee.
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(B) Independent Opinions of the Supervisory Committee to
the Related Matters of the Company in the Year 2007

1.

The Company’s Operating Validity

According to related laws and regulations, the Supervisory
Committee has supervised and examined the convening
procedures of the General Meeting and the Board
of Directors Meeting 2007, resolution matters, the
Board of Directors’ implementation of the General
Meeting resolutions, the enforcement of the Company's
management rules and the efficiency of the Company's
operating and managing, and the Supervisory Committee
deemed that the Company has operated strictly according
with the related provisions of the PRC Company Law,
the Listing Rules, the Articles of Association of the
Company and other regulations; that the Company
operates under scientific and proper decision making
procedure; and that the Company further perfected its
internal management and built favorable inner control

system in 2007.

Reviewing the Financial Situations of the Company

The Supervisory Committee carefully reviewed the
Company’'s Financial Balancing Report 2007, Profit
Distribution Scheme and the Audited Financial Reports
2007 (audited and submitted by Yuehua CPA Limited),
which the Board of Directors arranged to submit to the
General Meeting. The Supervisory Committee deemed
that the Company's audited Financial Reports 2007
was true and credible, which objectively presented the
Company's financial situations and business results.
The Supervisory Committee approved the Company’s
Financial Auditing Reports submitted by accounting

offices both at home and abroad.

The Implementation of the General Meeting
Resolutions

The members of the Supervisory Committee participated
in the Board of Directors Meeting and the General Meeting
without voting, the Supervisory Committee supervised
the implementation of the General Meeting resolutions,
and deemed that the Board of Directors could carefully

carry out the General Meeting decisions.
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(C) The Implementation of Supervisory Duties by the

Supervisory Committee

The Supervisory Committee supervised the Directors and
senior managers of the Company in accordance with the
related laws and the Articles of Association of the Company,
and deemed that the Directors and senior managers of the
Company carried out their duties lawfully, without any act
against the related laws and regulations and the Articles
of Association of the Company or the interests of the

Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board of Directors is responsible to establish and maintain the
internal control system of the Company, and to establish the Audit
Committee. The Company has established the audit department
internally, which monitors and supervise the disclosure of financial
information by the Company regularly or where necessary, as
well as operation and internal control activities, so as to ensure
the transparency of information disclosure externally, operation

efficiency and effectiveness in corporate control mechanisms.

AUDITORS

The sixth meeting for the Fifth Board was held on 22nd June
2007. During the meeting, it was decided that China Rightson
YueHua Certified Public Accountants Company Limited would be
appointed as the Chief Auditor for the financial reports prepared
according to PRC Accounting Rules and Regulations for the year
2007, and Yuehua (Hong Kong) CPA Limited would be appointed
as the auditor for the international financial reports pursuant to

the authority of the Shareholders’ General Meeting.

The financial statements included in the annual report of the
Company for the year 2007 were prepared according to PRC
Accounting Rules and Regulations and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, and were audited by China Rightson YueHua
Certified Public Accountants Company Limited, the domestic
auditor, and Yuehua (Hong Kong) CPA Limited, the international

auditor.



NN

e AC )

Corporate(Bovernance Reportmomnmem

ERMEBREE

RAITEINARERHEMEEREEBRER
T BRRBEBERER ARERRLE
MRANEERERE - MAEREELQRH
RNF-EHE - EHE B RE O RSQAMN
BE Eﬂﬂ?ﬁ%x’é“%?ﬂ%*@lf’ﬁqﬂ R

BRPHXEREMNFREREARS  REES
KR EE Fﬁ/Ahéﬁ B - WiEA

;E%ﬂhfég;ﬁ = ul}t N
i

BOTEETHALSEEE MK
Bk e R

RAIS °

ARMEEHRENREEBRBERBRESS

MER - ARAIKBEBIEBIBERNINE S EE K
BHEREE ZEHRNER  BEBRTSER
% DETTEARREARE BRe AR BEEK
F oo

Information Publication and Supervision

The Company continuously improves information publication
management and enhances the investor communication
management. The Company discloses information on an open,
fair, true, accurate, complete and timely ground and strictly in
accordance with the related disclosure requirements of relative
laws and regulations, the Article of Association of the Company
and Listing Rules, and improves the Company’s transparency.
In order to improve the communication with investors, the
Company issues its Interim Report and Annual Reports timely,
provides quality services to investing visitors and participates in
investor forums, and illustrates to the investors the Company's
latest development and vision through telephone meetings and

performance presentations.

The board secretaries department of the Company is responsible
for the information publication. The Company will perform its
duties, continuously enhance its governance structure and
improve its management strictly in accordance with related laws
and regulations of securities supervisory organizations at home

and abroad.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

HARBIN POWER EQUIPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
IEHESNRERBERAT

(A joint stock company established in the People’s Republic of
China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Harbin
Power Equipment Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group"”) set out on
pages 64 to 138 which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31st December, 2007, and the consolidated
income statements, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are

reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statement based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’'s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31st December, 2007 and of the Group's profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

YUEHUA CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 11th April, 2008

HENG KWOO SENG
Practising Certificate Number: P01087
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For the year ended 31st December, 2007

2007 2006
B 5 AREFR ARBT T
Notes Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
EEEBWA Turnover 5 27,648,584 29,098,016
T EEBRAR Cost of sales (23,320,873) (25,859,035)
EEEBERN Gross profit 4,327,711 3,238,981
H A WA Other income 7 355,042 384,251
EEER Distribution costs (413,613) (365,340)
EEEA Administrative expenses (1,886,760) (1,544,047)
H T Other expenses (149,151) (25,583)
MR Finance costs 8 (154,858) (156,654)
B2 R a5 5 Share of results of associates 37,449 11,965
B #i g g F Profit before taxation 2,115,820 1,543,573
DA Income tax expense 9 (331,246) (272,218)
REFHT Profit for the year 10 1,784,574 1,271,355
B SECHR : Attributable to:
AR A RIRR R Equity holders of the Company 1,527,979 1,024,581
DER RS Minority interests 256,595 246,774
1,784,574 1,271,355
B8 Dividends 12 123,913 77,742
BhEM -EF Earnings per share-basic 13 Rmb112.3 cents Rmb80.4 cents
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
R-FTLF+-A=+—8
At 31st December, 2007

2007 2006
B 5 AREFR AREF T
Notes Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
ERHEE Non-currents assets
WE - R RERE Property, plant and equipment 14 2,856,048 2,661,786
LB Investment properties 15 287,605 303,075
LA E Prepaid lease payments 16 358,098 361,412
=N Patents 17 126,202 73,626
EEFRIBEE Deferred tax assets 18 87,105 =
REtE R E 2w Interests in associates 20 128,101 168,448
FFIHEHRE Available-for-sale investments 21 28,074 30,947
3,871,233 3,599,294
MENEE Current assets
FE Inventories 22 10,167,289 11,503,691
JE W AR 3R Trade debtors 23 8,994,565 6,577,935
FE W 1R Bills receivable 23 208,710 316,855
HiEKR - Eek Other debtors, deposits
TE I FRIE and prepayments 23 5,339,159 6,049,210
LA E Prepaid lease payments 16 11,760 10,589
B A R EUKER Amounts due from customers
for contract work 24 3,632,591 3,541,262
i EEL =NGR! Amounts due
from fellow subsidiaries 25 67,327 54,741
A BR #l E #1753 Restricted bank deposits 6,630 12,000
B E B R Pledged bank deposits 37 169,684 40,500
TEBITF R Bank deposits 26 940,000 581,209
RITHEERRS Cash and cash equivalents 26 8,681,542 5,157,262
38,219,257 33,845,254
mENE & Current liabilities
BEa REMNR Amounts due to customers
for contract work 24 758,315 687,187
FE TR K Trade creditors 27 5,267,391 6,539,743
Hib R ERER Other creditors and
accrued charges 27 2,757,797 1,470,850
BliRe Deposits received 28 17,182,390 16,077,384
R PR R SR8 Amounts due to shareholders 25 - 1,071
NGBS PNGIE R Amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries 25 23,426 12,952
RIERR A B FIR Advance from holding company 29 103,956 277551
ERTE Tax liabilities 30 1,057,226 490,976
BR—FRNERBZER Borrowings-due within one year 31 753,387 501,117
27,903,888 26,058,831
MEEEFE Net current assets 10,315,369 7.786,423
MR RESEBRENEESE Total assets less current
liabilities 14,186,602 11,385,717
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At 31st December, 2007

2007 2006
B 5 AREFR AREF T
Notes Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
BAR & CAPITAL AND RESERVES
i@ Share capital 32 1,376,806 1,274,451
E] Reserves 3 5,836,187 3,557,016
DA R R REDR Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company 7,212,993 4,831,467
DHR R = Minority interests 1,199,417 947931
XS TOTAL EQUITY 8,412,410 5,779,398
FERBEE Non-current liabilities
Bz e Deposits received 28 1,621,598 1,510,798
HR—FREEZER Borrowings-due after one year 31 4,009,892 3,871,921
RIZWE R B FRIA Advance from holding company 29 142,702 223,600
5,774,192 5,606,319
14,186,602 11,385,717

HNFCAERI3BE LU BHRERLCHESTER
—EEN\FOA+—BHBBANRIAERM . WH
TIHEERREFTSESE

B X =
Qu Da-zhuang

EF
DIRECTOR

The financial statements on pages 64 to 138 were approved and
authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 11th April, 2008

and are signed on its behalf by:

HPE
SHANG Zhong-fu
EF
DIRECTOR
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Balance Sheet
R=TTLF+-A=+-A
At 31st December, 2007

2007 2006
M5 ARETT AREF T
Notes Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
ERBEE Non-currents assets
Y - BE ME&E Property, plant and equipment 14 398,541 343,380
BNLEAE Prepaid lease payments 16 35,548 34,210
NN P Interests in subsidiaries 19 2,262,001 2,101,593
N AN £ Interests in associates 20 41,811 17,746
FEHEERE Available-for-sale investments 21 17,879 17,879
2,755,780 2,514,808
RAEE Current assets
F& Inventories 22 173,532 252,220
JE Y BR 3R Trade debtors 381,244 12,617
Hib WK ~ e Rk Other debtors, deposits and
SEENE ] prepayments 864,937 409,364
At AE Prepaid lease payments 16 754 1,753
G NGB Amounts due from subsidiaries 19 996,022 1,605,748
AR [B] 718 Tax recoverables 30 - 35,267
EHFK Bank deposits 26 300,000 433,307
WITHEFRR S Cash and cash equivalents 26 890,545 939,437
3,607,034 3,689,713
,ﬁibéﬁa Current liabilities
JE A~ BR 3K Trade creditors 27 385,629 308,792
H e R R R B A Other creditors and
accrued charges 27 261,283 363,137
2tz e Deposits received 379,462 1,517,055
R ”’quﬁlm& Advance from holding company 29 567 45,796
R BT A RIFRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 19 323,330 8,753
ERTE Tax liabilities 30 61,490 =
BAR—FENEEIER Borrowings-due within one year 31 200,000 220,000
1,611,761 2,463,533
mEEEFE Net current assets 1,995,273 1,226,180
R FESERENESE Total assets less current liabilities 4,751,053 3,740,988
B A R ik CAPITAL AND RESERVES
[N Share capital 32 1,376,806 1,274,451
i Reserves 33 3,346,827 2,211,637
Eisast TOTAL EQUITY 4,723,633 3,485,988
ERBEIE Non-current liabilities
ER—FRERZMER Borrowings-due after one year 31 27,420 255,000
27,420 255,000
4,751,053 3,740,988
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Consolidated Statement Of Changes In Equity

HE-2TLF+-A=+—ALFE
For The Year Ended 31st December, 2007

REATRGFHAZER
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
EERE  EEAHE i}
X ABE  Statutory  EEHEE UL |
K%  BR&HE Statutory Statutory public Investment  REHF RS
Share Share  capital  surplus  welfare revaluation  Retained @i Minority B
capital  premium reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests Total
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETr ARETrT ARETrT ARETR ARETRT ARETT ARETR
Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000
RIZTNE At 1st January, 2006 1,274,451 1,089,089 709,850 193,188 198,615 16,101 403,334 3,884,628 640,052 4,524,680
-A-A
TERET Profit for the year - - - - - - 1024581 1024581 246,774 1,271,355
YRHERR Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 61,105 61,10
E Transfers - - - 300451 (198,615) - (107,836) = = =
RE Dividends - - = = = = (77,742) (77742) - (77,742)
RZETR At 31st December, 2006 1,274,451 1,089,089 709,850 493,639 - 16,101 1,248,337 4,831,467 947931 5,779,398
t=A=t-A
TERET Profit for the year - - - - - - 1527979 1527979 256595 1,784,574
REFHELRE Transfer to profit or loss
on sale of available-forsale
investments - - - - - (16,101) = (16,101) (5,109 (21,210)
s Issue of share capital 102,355 914,623 - - - - - 1,016,978 - 1,016,978
s 3§ Share issue expense - (3417) = = - = - (3417) - (2341
b Transfers - - - 37975 - - (37979) - - -
RE Dividends - - - = = - (123913 (123,913) - (123913
R-FFLE
+=B=+-H At 31st December, 2007 1,376,806 1,980,295 709,850 531,614 - - 2614428 7212993  1,199.417 8,412,410
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Consolidated Statement Of Changes In Equity (continued)

HE-2TLF+-A=+—ALFE
For The Year Ended 31st December, 2007

RIEH B QAL BT RS 2 9 BEIE Fe 1A
T~

(1) FFIEE -

(2) REVEEBBRDEE
(3) RMEBBHKLEE K&
(4) IREEBRZBE

BEFRARTERARARFKBRARZARE
B ARRAERENBARYAREIIZBRES
STERRE B HmE - RII0% MR B &%
A BAHBRZEERBATESENA ©

AEBBART RERESRN — 0 - EHER
BEINARGZMERZ50%H - Al NAB R
B REBEFBERARE  AERBABES AN
BAEEE BRAARRZEBRBREAR -8
RRARZEEBBABEHERTR/EANE - %K
AARBREAZEBIBLIRNEMEAR25% °

BRI R BLEDHETT 14 78 Bl 1 26 B 75 B 32

@A) (B B[20071675F ) B MR TE - =

ETAF+ A=+ —HNATLAHZSHNEHS

EBELERBRABSEERECR AKK-_ZZ

ANE—A—BE TBHFERFEFRIEAE
s

>

!
)i

In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the profit after taxation

is applied in the following order:

(1) making up of losses;

(2) allocation to statutory surplus reserve;

(3) allocation to discretionary surplus reserve; and

(4) payment of dividends in respect of ordinary shares.

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the relevant Articles
of Association, the Company and its subsidiaries are required to
appropriate amounts equal to 10% of their profit after taxation
as determined in accordance with the PRC accounting standards

to each of the statutory surplus reserve.

Statutory surplus reserve is part of shareholders’ equity and when
its balance reaches an amount equal to 50% of the Company's
registered capital, further appropriation needs not be made.
According to the PRC Company Law, statutory surplus reserve
may be used to make up past losses, to increase production and
business operations or to increase capital by means of conversion.
However when funds from statutory surplus reserve are converted
to capital, the funds remaining in such reserve shall amount to

not less than 25% of the registered capital.

In accordance with “Cai Qi [2007] No. 67, Notice of accounting
treatment as a result of the implementation of the PRC Company
Law” the balance of statutory public welfare fund at 31st
December, 2005 is transferred to the statutory surplus reserve.
Further, effective from 1st January, 2006, appropriation of the
profit as reported under the People’s Republic of China (“PRC")

to the statutory public welfare fund is no longer required.
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Consolidated Statement Of Changes In Equity (continued)

HE-22LFT-A=+—ALFE
For The Year Ended 31st December, 2007

BARBeRALBESHREREAR(K
EEERQRDERBEIELERT  EAQA
R EFEENAFEREETTRESE
RANBEEARRELRERE 2HNEE
BER

B A La(3) k(4)18 B & FE 2 2 Bo bt fI 4B
ARHEEENEARAREMBRARNEE
BARBERFEET @ WARSKRRSIAE

ERARAEBEIRIAERBRAIES Z2H
ARAREMB ARG TEIKERS

BEMBBR—NANAFENABAEEBRRT S
RzXft AIPEFREZCELABEFES
SHEAFMAEZSEARBEAEELERERZE
STERFTETEZRE  MEUREEAE - R
T+ F T A=+ —BARRAZANERE
HABEBEEBLTREI G RRMEE ZH
FaRAAARE291,141,000L (=T R
AR #85,032,0007T) ° 41 £ X ATt - JEE R
B IR R EE RS TR -

The statutory capital reserve represents the surplus arising from
the difference between the fair value of the net assets of the
principal business undertakings transferred from Harbin Power
Plant Equipment Group Corporation (“HPEGC") to the Group and
the nominal value of the State shares issued to HPEGC by the

Company when the Company was formed.

The amount of appropriation in respect of items (3) and (4) above
for any year shall be recommended by the directors in accordance
with the operational conditions and development requirements
of the Company and its subsidiaries and shall be submitted to

the shareholders in general meeting for approval.

No dividends shall be paid by the Company and its subsidiaries
before they have made up their losses and made allocations to

the statutory surplus reserve.

Pursuant to a document issued by the Ministry of Finance in August
1995 in respect of profit appropriations, the amount available for
distribution to shareholders is the lesser of the amount determined
in accordance with the PRC accounting standards and the amount
determined in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. At 31st December, 2007, the amount
available for distribution to shareholders was Rmb291,141,000
(2006: Rmb85,032,000) representing the retained profits of
the Company prepared under accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. As also mentioned above, the balance of

statutory surplus reserve can also be distributed to shareholders

in certain situations.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HE-TTLE+-A=+-ALEE
For The Year Ended 31st December, 2007

2007 2006
ARBTR ARBFT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
MBI Cash flows from operating activities
4% 25 A ¥ Profit before taxation 2,115,820 1,543,573
A Adjustments for:
RIZREE Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 262,962 291,820
GEBREEE Allowance for inventories 92,613 113,526
Taf £ HE 5 Release of prepaid lease payments 11,760 10,589
Ewilld ] Amortisation of patents 71,195 11,008
W - BEREETE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 372,479 296,455
BEMENE Depreciation of investment properties 21,906 15,640
BE 7S 2 i Finance costs 154,858 156,654
FREHE MR ERERER Impairment loss recognized in respect
of available-for-sale investments - 5,299
BEYERERER Impairment loss recognized in respect
of investment properties 2,520 -
HFERERER Impairment loss recognized
in respect of patents 8,403 3,000
M - BE REERERR Impairment loss recognized in respect
of property, plant and equipment 46,886 -
&8 U A Dividend income (794) (40,594)
REFHEMHRE (Gain)/Loss on disposal
(W) B8 of available-for-sale investments (39,136) 4,196
REVE BERZEER Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 614 508
RELERBRAIEL Loss on deemed disposal of a subsidiary - 5,750
FSWA Interest income (229,852) (178,803)
I - R MR 6E Property, plant and equipment written off 14,715 2,584
i NG Share of results of associates (37,449) (11,965)
S MR AR E 2 ] B Reversal of impairment
loss recognised in respect of
available-for-sale investments - (343)
R BR ZE [ 7% Reversal of allowance for bad
and doubtful debts (10,943) (5,003)
M - BE KERERE Reversal of impairment loss of property,
ZE {8 [0 plant and equipment (570) =
TFERBAERFE & Reversal of allowance
for inventories (35,709) (7,287)
BESSRHRZLEE Operating profit before working
BREME capital changes 2,822,278 2,216,607
FERD Decrease in inventories 1,279,498 1,025,388
FEURBR ZX I N Increase in trade debtors (2,679,592) (2,610,090)
EWEgR D/ (3Ehn) Decrease/(Increase) in bills receivable 108,145 (146,446)
HERH - 2Rk Decrease in other debtors,
T FRIER > deposits and prepayments 720,994 1,633,705
BiEA R R Increase in amounts due from customers
for contract work (91,329) (1,462,486)
JE Bk 2 1\ R RIE Decrease/(Increase) in amounts due
WA,/ (gm) from associates 77,796 (76,606)
& U 1B % B BB 22 R R IEE N Increase in amounts due
from fellow subsidiaries (12,586) (11,031)
BiEA RIER LM Increase in amounts due to customers
for contract work 71,128 336,265
AR R ) /18 m (Decrease)/Increase in trade creditors (1,272,352) 2,153,855
H 4t P 5 TR R FE AT B RS 0 Increase in other creditors
and accrued charges 1,286,947 718,830
BliRe M,/ CRd) Increase/(Decrease) in deposits received 1,215,806 (5,635,462)
RIZRRA B FRIEE AN Increase in amount due
to holding company - 204,255
FER AR ZRIE R D),/ m (Decrease)/Increase in amounts
due to shareholders (1,071) 866
& 1~ ] 2 B BB 2 B 3R OB 2 4 Increase in amounts due
to fellow subsidiaries 10,474 12,952
FERTIEERE R H A FE AT Increase in value added tax and
FRIRE AN other taxes payable 274,530 265,614
SEERRELE (R ZR&FE Cash from/(used in) operations 3,810,666 (1,373,784)
ERRE Dividends paid (123,913) (77,742)
B FEE Income tax paid (126,631) (188,799)
CEERESE (FA)Z2BELFE Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 3,560,122 (1,640,325)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)
HE-TTLET-A=+-RALEE
For The Year Ended 31st December, 2007

2007 2006
AREBTR AREF T
Rmb’000 Rmb’000

BREER Cash flows from investing activities
HEFHEENHKREMER Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale investments 20,799 1,377,743
WEEKBRAREAZFREXK New cash inflow from acquisition of subsidiaries - 101,053
RITEBEZR D Decrease in bank deposits (358,791) (296,407)
A S A Interest received 229,852 178,803
HEME - BE REREMEK Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 21,263 11,169
HESRITE TEMBER Proceeds from disposal of derivative financial instruments - 344
B S Dividend received 794 44,057
BEBRTEROGEM), R (Increase)/Decrease in pledged bank deposits (129,184) 314,500
BEREME Purchases of investment properties (8,956) =
BEWE  BEREE Purchases of property, plant and equipment (649,649) (479,794)
BEEMLTHAE Additions to prepaid lease payments (9,617) -
BEERE Purchase of patents (132,174) (11,805)
BRHIRITERRD Decrease in restricted bank deposits 5,370 =
BREER(FR) EEZREFE Net cash (used in)/from investing activities (1,010,293) 1,239,663

MEER Cash flows from financing activities
R RITER New bank loans raised 1,298,322 1,508,100
BATRAFTERK Proceeds from issue of shares 993,561 -
g H A B 5K Other loans raised 23,634 67,892
RIERR A B FRIBHE N Advance from holding company (254,493) (119,400)
BERBITER Repayment of bank loans (895,234) (294,258)
BEAFE Interest paid (154,858) (156,975)
EEEMER Repayment of other loans (36,481) (43,341)
MEXBEEZHLFE Net cash from financing activities 974,451 962,018
HeRREFEWEM Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,524,280 561,356
EVNHRERFLEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5,157,262 4,595,906
ERFERRLEED Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8,681,542 5,157,262

HeRBeEENEEZSI Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year

ROBFERRS Bank balances and cash 8,331,542 4,845,708
RITER Bank deposits 350,000 311,654
8,681,542 5,157,262
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BE-TTLFI-AS+-ALEE
For the year ended 31st December, 2007

1.

GENERAL

The Company is established as a joint stock limited company
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), and its H shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its
holding company is Harbin Power Plant Equipment Group
Corporation (“"HPEGC"), a state-owned enterprise incorporated
in the PRC. The address of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the company
information of the annual report.

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi, which is

the same as the functional currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
the activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are

set out in notes 43 and 20, respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_ZTLFT-_A=t—HILFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2007

2. FAFTREEITHEFERMBREERD

RAEE  AEBRXRATIEEESET
MAgEMmeETHER BT RZBE(T
NHEEAMBREER]) - ZEER
HRAR AL BER2007451 818 A KB K
FE -

BEEFTHER BAWE
FE1EUERT)
HFREMB®RE ERIA : KE

ERIFETH
&5 (BRY % BHBERARNEH

HmERE R T EMBRE
ES R RIBBSTER
—REE7R F29REABIA
B8 (BB 75 B BRELER
WERE F 25 50 [El
ZEE)

—REE8H

54 (BBRVHRE BIEBRATELR
REEEY)

—REEIR
EB(BRREMBRE PHMBRE REEAE
RELZET)

—REEI105%

RAFEEMHERELER  HASFTHEX
BESHHRZEERMBERABERZT
WEREAFE - Bt - BARBEFEED
AHEE o

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

During the current year, the Group has adopted, for the
first time, the following new standards, amendment and
interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), which
are effective for the Group’'s financial year beginning 1st
January, 2007

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosure

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HK(IFRIC) = Int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach
under HKAS 29 Financial
Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies

HK(IFRIC) - Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC) = Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded

Derivatives

HK(IFRIC) — Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and

Impairment

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current or
prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented.

Accordingly, no prior year adjustment has been required.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_ZTLF T -_A=1t—HIFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2007

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The Group has not early adopted the following new standards,

amendment or interpretations that have been issued but are

not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC) - Int 11

HK(IFRIC) — Int 12

HK(IFRIC) — Int 13

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14

Presentation of Financial Statements’

Borrowing Costs'

Operating Segments'’

HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share

Transactions?

Service Concession Arrangements?®

Customer Loyalty Programmes*

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

Requirements and their Interaction®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st March, 2007
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2008

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application

=
& o

of these new standards, amendment or interpretations may
results in new or amended disclosures but it is unlikely to

have impact on the results and the financial position of the

Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_ZTLFT-_A=t—HILFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2007

3. EEEBURME

BRTREESHBRTEENSRTANR
REEFEIN  ZEEMBRKRVIRELK
RNEPIRE -

RAMBHRRDRETEGTMAGRMGL
BEMBMELENRE - I FREMBR
REEBEEBMAIHMES LR R AF
GOIRE 2 ERIESE -

RAEMBMRE 6 T ARRRAR B S
MEREMBRR) NP BREK - 252
BARRARNEEZERB ZMBREER
B EMXERELLE LY -

EFEBARRENMBAR  HEZ2XRD
FEBELAMBRRIERELERARLES
RESABRSERA -

MBESREARS & WARFEXERE
BIREEFEE o

RAMBARFEEAZ PBIRRAGER
BAKE G2 ERDRIIE - PBERRZ
REBRZSHENREF A AR B8R
ROBERREEZA G BHBARZBRAE
B - BRARDBBRRNEIRBLRHERR
P 1 2 B BR A 25 O BRSO R (B A A
sSIFH OB DBBERANRNEERA
UEMIRE R EBRERIN

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values, as explained

in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including special
purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as

to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective

date of disposal, as appropriate.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses

are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group's equity therein.
Minority interests consist of the amount of those interests
at the date of the original business combination and the
minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of the
combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of
the minority’'s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated
against the interests of the Group except to the extent that

the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an

additional investment to cover the losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_ZTLF T -_A=1t—HIFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2007

3. XS BRME(E)

EBaH

W B I 8 X B Ty A SRR AR » WIB R A 4R
RMARAREIEEEE - REENAAE
ZBERAEER AU A REET
BT ZBEATAZENAFRE - IEXEB
BHZENEREERAFE - FaEEY
B EERIFEINRXH A 6 7] R AR
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MEBREEANFESRISIFEENIERBEE
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business
combination. The acquiree’'s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition
under HKFRS 3. Business Combinations are recognised at
recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date, except
for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held Sale and Discontinued Operations, which are recognised

and measured at fair value less costs to sell.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of
the business combination over the Group's interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group's
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the
cost of the business combination, the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially

measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of

the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is not a subsidiary nor an interest in a

joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes
in the Group's share of the profit or loss and of changes in
equity of the associate, less any identified impairment loss.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share
of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of
acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included
within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed

for impairment as part of the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the

Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the

Group’s interest in the relevant associate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of

business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and

title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of

the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’
established.

rights to receive payment have been

Revenue from sales of properties is recognized when the risks
and rewards of properties are transferred to the purchasers,
which is when the construction of relevant properties has
been completed and the properties have been delivered to
the purchasers and collectibility of related receivables is

reasonably assured.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciations and
accumulated impairment losses. Any gains or losses on the
retirement or disposal of investment properties are recognised
in the income statement in the year of the retirement or

disposal. Such properties are depreciated on the straight-line

basis over the lease term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction-in-
progress and properties under development are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses.

Construction-in-progress represents properties under
construction and equipment purchases prior to installation
and is stated at cost, including borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy for borrowing
costs, less any recognised impairment loss. Construction in
progress is classified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for

their intended use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction-in-
progress over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account of their estimated residual value, using the

straight-line method, on the following bases:

Buildings 3.23% - 6.47%
6.47% — 13.86%
10.78% - 19.40%
16.17% — 19.40%

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying

amount of the item) is included in the consolidated income

statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments are stated at cost less accumulated

amortisation and any impairment losses. The prepaid land

lease payments are amortised on the straight-line basis over

the unexpired period of the rights.

Intangible assets

i)

ii)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognized in the consolidated income statement

when the asset is derecognized.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an

expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is
anticipated that the development costs incurred on a
clearly— defined project will be recovered through future
commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised on
a straight-line basis over its useful life, and carried at

cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any

accumulated impairment losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

if)

iii)

iv)

Research and development expenditure (continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally — generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged

to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally — generated
intangible asset is reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the

same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where
they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their fair
values can be measured reliably. The cost of such intangible

assets is their fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses,
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated

impairment losses.

Impairment

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually by comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount do the asset is reduced to

its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised

as an expense immediately.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

iv) Impairment (continued)
When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of

impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset may

be impaired.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require

delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.
Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets designated as
at financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, of which

interest income is included in net gains or losses.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and
other debtors, loans receivable, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment

losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and held-

to-maturity investments.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until the financial
asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which

time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity

is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
guoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at each balance sheet date subsequent

to initial recognition.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments (primarily foreign
currency forward contracts) to hedge its exposure against
changes in exchange rate. Such derivatives are measured at
fair value, at each balance sheet date regardless of whether

they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are deemed
as financial assets held for trading or financial liabilities held
for trading. Changes in fair values of such derivatives are

recognised directly in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit
or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each
balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have

been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its

cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

e default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

® tbecoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables and loans receivable,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade or other receivable is considered uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment

not been recognised.




Y 7% 3 3= B & ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_ZTLF T -_A=1t—HIFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2007

3. XS BRME(E)

ERMTIRE)
EHMEERE(F)

A SRR AR EBERS TN
HRBEBEERT - FARESBRRZIAA
B LR R -

HEERERERE

SEEBRTZMBABRBRARETAT
REARRFEZUEERBMBEEEREAKE
TRAZERDE -

BAKRETATEREBRIVRAE AER
ZEETHERGRE2EFNER - AEE
ERRTCERAE - ROIB/EMEREA

f& o

BN EZ

ERMFRTDFER B ABE I BHERARIR
ERRMIBANEXHZTE BRAME
TREF R RRENRRVMBABEZED
FR - FBRERAB(EEE) BRFTRZH

MBS ABRR A R AR ER -

HERE
MHABE(RITETARRARKERSTK
H)BREBITERAMMENR  BAKRR - Hi
ENRRESAER - REKERABFEAR
R ARG - TR R R BB A X
HEBHERANGTE -

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is
recognised directly in equity.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of

a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group's financial liabilities are generally classified
into other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where

appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than those financial liabilities designated as at fair
value through profit or loss, of which the interest expense

is included in net gains or losses.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (other than derivative instruments which
are deemed as held for trading) including bank and other
borrowings, trade creditors, other creditors and accrued
charges, amount due to holding company and advance from

holding company are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest rate method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at

the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been

recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

For financial liabilities, they are removed from the Group's
balance sheet (i.e. when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires). The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid or payable

is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost

method.

Properties held for development for sale in the ordinary course
of business are stated at cost less any identified impairment
loss. Cost includes the cost of construction, financing and
other direct costs attributable to the development of such

properties. No depreciation is provided on properties under

development.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance
sheet date, as measured by the proportion that contract costs
incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total
contract costs for the contract. Variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that

they have been agreed with the customer.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in

the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as

an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus
is shown as an amount due from customers for contract
work. For contracts where progress billings exceed contract
costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses, the surplus is shown as an amount due to customers
for contract work. Amounts received before the related work
is performed are included in the balance sheet, as a liability,
as advances received. Amounts billed for work performed
but not yet paid by the customer are included in the balance
sheet under trade and other receivables.

Retirement benefit costs

Retirement benefit costs charged to the consolidated income

statement represent the amount payable under a defined

contribution arrangement with the local government.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it
further excludes income statement items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted

by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse

in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit
or loss, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt

with in equity.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation.
Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance
sheet date, and are discounted to present value where the
effect is material.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in

the period in which they are incurred.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards

of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight— line basis over

the term of the relevant lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded
in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency

are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised

in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are

recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange

differences are also recognised directly in equity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Rmb) at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
as a separate component of equity (the translation reserve).
Such exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be compiled with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the periods necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the income

statement over the expected useful life of the relevant asset

by equal annual instalments.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management makes various estimates based on past
experiences, expectations of the future and other information.
The key source of estimation uncertainty that may significantly
affect the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements are disclosed below:

Estimated impairment on loans and receivables (including
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, trade and other
debtors)

Management regularly reviews the recoverability and aging
of loans and trade receivables. Appropriate impairment for
estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit
and loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is

impaired.

In determining whether impairment for bad and doubtful debts
is required, the Group takes into consideration the aging
status and likelihood of collection. Specific allowance is only
made for receivables that are unlikely to be collected and is
recognised on the difference between the estimated future
cash flow expected to receive discounted using the original

effective interest rate and its carrying value.

Allowance for inventories

Management reviews the net realisable values and aging of
inventories and makes allowance for obsolete and slow moving
inventory items identified with reference to existing market
environment, the sales performance in previous years and
estimated market value, i.e. the estimated selling price, less
estimated costs of selling. A specific allowance for inventories

is made if the estimated market value of the inventories is

lower than its carrying value.
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5. TEEHKA

5. TURNOVER
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Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable for
goods sold and services rendered by the Group to outside
customers during the year, net of value added tax (“VAT")

and sales returns, and is analysed as follows:

Sales of goods
EEaRWKA
&S PR A Sales of properties
Rental income

PR 4R U A

Services rendered

. BT E S

REESRATHEEZEDH — NEEHR
o KEBEHRE  BUIRRE B
F REREHEREAM

TE2REEHMT

NEETHRE BUENEFHEE

wh TREZRRY

BUE B UL E A

2007 2006

ARETT AR®ET T

Rmb’000 Rmb’'000

22,348,577 22,912,057

Revenue from construction contracts 5,052,361 5,948,694
220,306 206,784

24,479 26,170

2,861 4,311

27,648,584 29,098,016

. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
Business segments

The Group operates in five major segments as follows-main
thermal power equipment, main hydro power equipment,
engineering services for power stations, ancillary equipment

for power stations and AC/DC motors and others.

Principal activities are as follows:

Main thermal power manufacture of main

equipment thermal power equipment.
Main hydro power - manufacture of main hydro

equipment power equipment.
Engineering services - providing engineering services

for power stations.

Ancillary equipment - manufacture of ancillary

equipment for power stations.

AC/DC motors - manufacture of AC/DC motor

and others and others.
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6. EBFHMBESI(E) 6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)
AR ELEBN DI EEIRAT ¢ Segment information about these businesses is presented
below.
2007 2007
NE KE B ETL
i i I8 REE
B B TR B RER
Main Main  Engineering Ancillary EHRED
thermal hydro services equipment AC/DC E
power power for power for power motors it &
equipment equipment stations stations and others Eliminations Consolidated
N 2 ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT  ARETR
Rmb’000 Rmb'000 Rmb’'000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000
TEXBEA REVENUE
IS ON External sales 20,463,511 2,172,504 2,090,704 1,124,500 1,797,365 - 27,648,584
AEHBA Intersegment sales 1,223,875 - - = 5,098 (1,228,973) =
ELON Total revenue 21,687,386 2,172,504 2,090,704 1,124,500 1,802,463 (1,228,973) 27,648,584
PEBNHERNBTHIRBIRETEE - Intersegment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
HPEERF SEGMENT RESULTS 3,417,779 305,648 44,892 317,754 241,638 - 4,327,111
KeEHBETER  Unallocated corporate expenses (2,094,482)
BB Finance costs (154,858
REE QAR Share of results of associates 37,449
BiETRRN Profit before taxation 2,115,820
HE Income tax expense (331,246)
REERET Profit for the year 1,784,574
BE ASSETS
PHEE Segment assets 20,811,910 1,969,860 4,706,676 1,077,262 2,774,206 31,339,914
REEREZER  Interests in associates 128,101
KegHBEHEE  Unallocated corporate assets 10,622,475
AREEE Consolidated total assets 42,090,490
B LIABILITIES
AEEE Segment liabilities 19,691,571 2,085,136 1,864,180 1,043,768 1,832,941 26,517,596
KeHBENEE  Unallocated corporate liabilities 7,160,484
AfHERRE Consolidated total liabilities 33,678,080
HigH OTHER INFORMATION
BARTIH Capital additions 462,11 33,412 37,326 26,276 241,271 - 800,396
% BER Depreciation of property,
REME plant and equipment 181,466 49,558 16,967 7528 116,960 - 372,479
REMENE Depreciation of investment
properties 4,391 m - 231 16,507 - 21,906
EF|ERH Amortisation of patents 64,504 102 - 3,656 2,933 - 71,195
B THHEEREE  Release of prepaid
lease payments 8,840 1,655 6 402 857 - 11,760
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6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)

20065 2006
KE *E B BUiEH
I T I# REE
BL ] B FR% B RE
Main Main Engineering Ancillary BlREM
thermal hydro services equipment AC/DC kS
power power for power for power motors it aff
equipment equipment stations stations and others Eliminations  Consolidated
ARBTTI AREFT ARBTT AREBTTIL ARBTT ARBTT  ARETR
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
TEEREA REVENUE
SN External sales 21,836,612 1,608,561 3,007672 1,053,026 1,592,145 - 29,098,016
AHRA Inter-segment sales 594,910 - - - - (594,910) -
LU Total revenue 22,431,522 1,608,561 3,007,672 1,053,026 1,592,145 (594,910) 29,098,016
P EHBNHERNBTHIREREER  Intersegment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
HEBEERF SEGMENT RESULTS 2,646,262 112,097 5,199 265,585 209,838 - 3,238,981
KegHBETER  Unallocated corporate expenses (1,550,719)
p S Finance costs (156,654)
SN Share of results of associates 11,965
BE AR Profit before taxation 1,643,573
HE Income tax expense (272,218)
REERF Profit for the year 1,271,355
BE ASSETS
PEEE Segment assets 21,334,476 1,516,546 4,153,891 939,075 2,084,830 - 30,028,818
REERFAZESE  Interests in associates 168,448
FeEPBAETEE  Unallocated corporate assets 7247282
AREEE Consolidated total assets 37444548
Bf LIABILITIES
AHEE Segment liabilities 20,677518 1,716,088 638,293 812,630 1,660,156 - 25,404,685
REABBEEE  Unallocated corporate liabilities 6,260,465
AfHeER Consolidated total liabilities 31,665,150
HipEd OTHER INFORMATION
BRI Capital additions 380,569 36,614 2,470 24,451 110,508 - 554,612
% BER Depreciation of property,
RENE plant and equipment 216,443 34,263 2,905 12,597 30,247 - 296,455
RENENE Depreciation of investment
properties 7,581 5,526 - 78 2,455 - 15,640
B33 Amortisation of patents 7879 - - 427 2,702 - 11,008
BATHBEEREE  Release of prepaid
lease payments 8,179 1,211 - 322 877 - 10,589
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6. ERFIHED(E)

b [ 53 &8

AEEZETLEXBRATERARTEAR
HEMBE([HBEDFEAR - ZHWRIBNOT :

. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)

Geographical segments

The Group's operations are located mainly in the People's
Republic of China (“PRC"). The following table provides
an analysis of the Group's sales by geographical market,

irrespective of the origin of the goods/services:

2007 2006

AREFRT AREF T

Rmb’000 Rmb’000

RN PRC 25,491,509 25,553,963
RN Overseas 2,157,075 3,544,053
UL A Total revenue 27,648,584 29,098,016

AEBZFEEENBBEEEMRFEE
ReRN_TZT+ ¢+ B=t—HARkR-_ZZT
NE+TZA=Z+—H URBINNEEFE
BLREELR éﬁEW@E%H’MO%o

//
A]
M

H+

HibEHBA
Hi WA BEMAT

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities are located in
the PRC. The assets and liabilities situated overseas account
for less than 10% of the Group’'s assets and liabilities as at
31st December, 2007 and 2006.

OTHER INCOME

Included in other income are the following:

2007 2006
ARETR ARBET T
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
% B U A Dividend income 794 44,057
BEFIHEERE RS Gain on disposal of available-for-sales
investments 39,136 -
BT #65 B Government subsidy 18,336 14,605
TR & mgE 2 Interest income from
A B U A financial institutions 229,852 178,803
BERL 8 S FE Profit from sales of scrap materials 17,178 26,071
RIBAREE Reversal of allowance for bad and
doubtful debts 10,943 5,003
75 K (B 248 [0 % Reversal of allowance for inventories 35,709 7,287
FIHE IR ERELEME DA Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in respect of available-for-sale
investments - 343
ME - BE R RERE Reversal of impairment loss recognized
AE {5 [B] # in respect of property,
plant and equipment 570 -
HAity Other income 2,524 108,082
st Total 355,042 384,251
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. MEXZH : 8. FINANCE COSTS
2007 2006
ARETR ARETT
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
ERFEIL Interest on borrowings:
—BERAEANZHEERR - wholly repayable within five years 93,109 46,883
-BERAERNZBEEER - not wholly repayable within five years 61,998 110,092
155,107 156,975
W EBRREAZER Less: Interest capitalised in construction
ERIRRFIBSH in progress (249) (321)
154,858 156,654
AEBRTEAZEBERASERAREEDN Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the
— R EHIR6.12% (ZEEXF 1 6.2%) general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a
RFEFLAEREHESE - capitalisation rate of 6.12% (2006: 6.2%) to expenditure on
2 qualifying assets.
. BB : 9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
2007 2006
ARETR ARBET T
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
B RIS PRC enterprise income tax
—ARFE - current year 418,545 273,958
—BEFERBBE — overprovision in prior years (194) (1,740)
418,351 272,218
AEFRLER K (H7iE18)  Deferred tax (note 18) (87,105) =

331,246 272,218
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9. BIE(E)

Z X TV RAF A ET Z R AIAT
E16% T EZHBEMREH -

REFEFERLEERBRERR —NALEF
ZAZTNAEMRBERZXM - AEEREL
Bf /B R B DA SN B SR B IR AR H215% 2 Bt K
BNPER -

REFRIZ RGBT PR BB
T -

9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The charge mainly represents PRC enterprise income tax

calculated at 15% of the estimated taxable income for the

year.

Pursuant to a document issued by the PRC Ministry of Finance

and the State Tax Bureau on 29th March, 1994, taxable income

earned by the Group, except for certain subsidiaries, is subject

to an enterprise income tax rate of 15%.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

before taxation per the consolidated income statement as

follows:

2007 2006
ARETR ARETTT
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
B 754 A1 42 7 Profit before taxation 2,115,820 1,543,573
AEBIRI5%NF R E Tax charge at the enterprise
income tax rate of 15% 317,373 231,536
RS R RIS Tax effect of share of results of associates
RRUBBHT & (5.617) (1,795)
AEBEHEB AT Additional enterprise income tax
BT Hi33 % FTiL il 2 in respect of the income tax rate
TEMEH of 33% for certain subsidiaries 7,490 8,319
EHEAFRERAVCER Tax effect of income not taxable
TERBMA G RGN Z & for tax purpose (8.812) (17.177)
T EAFERT B Tax effect of expenses not deductible
TANBE X HERBEHOTE for tax purpose 75,693 81,505
A—RH BB AR Effect of tax exemptions granted
ELiBHRETE to a PRC subsidiary (28,684) (28,430)
PARTEE R B HER A Temporary difference previously not recognised
R ERETBAONE (27,122) =
AERHBEERE Tax effect of tax losses not recognized 1,119 =
BEFEZBERTE Overprovision in respect of prior years (194) (1,740)
AEERBZ Tax charge for the year 331,246 272,218
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10.PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Nk & BERN & Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging:
2007 2006
ARETR AREFTT
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
AIRA Staff costs including directors’

(BREENEENHH) and supervisors' emoluments 875,268 825,540
RINEHGE Retirement benefit scheme contributions 216,744 172,470
ANTHRKAR Total staff costs 1,092,012 998,010
REREMR Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 262,962 291,820
FEREER Allowance for inventories 92,613 113,526
Eglls: Amortisation of patents 71,195 11,008
TR iR S Release of prepaid lease payments 11,760 10,589
Bt E Auditors’ remuneration 2,500 2,650
REMEME Depreciation for investment properties 21,906 15,640
ME - BERRETE Depreciation for property,

plant and equipment 372,479 296,455
HEFHEHREBRE Loss on disposal of available-for-sale

investments - 4,196
HEME  BERREESR Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment 614 508
FHEMRERERR Impairment loss recognized in respect

(BEREMEBER) of available-for sale investments

(included in other expenses) - 5,299
BRI RERER Impairment loss recognized

in respect of patents 8,403 3,000
REMFEHERBERER Impairment loss recoginized in respect of

investment properties 2,520 -
V¥« BRE KRR ERER Impairment loss recognized

in respect of property, plant

and equipment 46,886 -
ERTREEPS Net foreign exchange loss 104,286 32,728
W - RS Bk i 5 Property, plant and equipment written off 14,715 2,584
HEREER Research and development expenses 463,893 452,740

£002-900Z Hoday [enuuy paywi] Auedwo) uswdinbl Jjemod uigieH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_ZTLFT-_A=t—HILFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2007

T& D RIFIR T1662(2006 : 16)E = MEL

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTS

2007

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 16 (2006: 16)

EEABEFER : directors and supervisors were as follows:
B f i f i f ™ e ™ e ™ e i e ™ o
#F  ERE BXE  BEE W REE $# R OBER  RER TSR mER B EEt  gEE K2 amait
Mr.Zhao  Mr. Gong Mr.Qu  Mr.Duan  Mr. Shang Mr.Wu Mr. Ms.Li Mr.Zhou Mr.Jia ~ Ms.Ding ~ Mr.Lang Mr. Mr.Gao Ms. Lu Mr. Total
Kefei  Jingkun Dazhuang  HongYi  Zhongfu Weizhang  Jiang Kui Hejun  Daosjiong Cheng-bing  Xue-mei Engi YangXu  Xuguang  Chunfian  ChenSi 2007
ARBFR  ARBFR  ARBTR ARRTR ARETR ARRTR ARRTR ARBTR  ARRTR ARBIR ARETR ARETR ARRTR ARMTR ARETR ARBTR AREIR
Rmb’ 000  Amb' 000 Rmb’ 000 Rmb’ 000 Rmb’ 000 Rmb' 000 Rmb' 000 Rmb'000 Rmb’ 000 Rmb' 000 Rmb’ 000 Rmb' 000 Rmb’000 Rmb' 000 Rmb’ 000 Rmb' 000  Rmb’ 000
e Fees
AfiHE Other emoluments - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
TESAWERE  Salaries and other benefits - 41 ] 406 - - - - - ] 113 9% 176 - 2,106
BiniERE Contrbutions to retirement
benefits schemes - 1 il 1l - - - - - 1 il 1 1 - i
HuE Total emoluments - 462 4 4 - - - - - “w 124 107 187 - 2183
20064 2006
. f . f . f e P e e e o i e e e
faliE2 Es¥ BAE Al i fge it 27 el LI $2z Ly Atk Ezg RE 200655
Mr.Zhao M. Gong Mr.Qu  MrDuan  Mr Shang Mr. Wu Mr. Ms.Li Mr. Zhou Mr.Jia ~ Ms.Ding M Lang Mr Mr. Gao Ms. Lu Mr. Total
Kedei  Jingkun  Dazhuang  HongYi  Zhongfu  Wekzhang Jiang Kui Hejun  Daojiong Chengbing  Xue-mei Engi  YangXu  Xeguang  Chunfizn  ChenSi 2008
ARRTR ARMTR ARRTT ARMTR ARMTn ARBTn ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTn ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR  ARMTR
RAmb000  Amb000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Amb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb000  Amb'000  Rmb'000  RAmb000  Amb'000  Rmb000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb000  Amb000  Rmb'000
.53 Fees - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
AEE Other emoluments
TEEAfEAE  Sdlaries and other benefits - - 38 - 316 kKl - - - - - il 10 8 13 - 1633
it | Contrbutions to etitement
benefits schemes = = 9 = 9 9 = = = = = 10 9 10 10 = 66
i Total emoluments - 367 - 35 356 - - - - - 304 m 90 146 - 1,699

* SEHATES
*x KEFNTES

**x SEMBIYIERTES

e EEMEE

o

EMEFREENEZHHIERARB1008
7T

R-IZEERFR_ZFTLF  AEERUK
BHECEIALHRARBZESTHE
= HEHMedrmtE -

*  Being executive directors of the Group

** Being non-executive directors of the Group

*** Being independent non-executive directors of the Group

****Being supervisors of the Group

None of the directors received more than Rmb1,000,000 for

any of these two years.

The five highest paid individuals in the Group in 2006 and

2007 were directors and supervisors of the Company and

details of their emoluments are set out above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31st December, 2007

12.55 2 12.DIVIDENDS
2007 2006
AREFRT AREETIT
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
KHEAE 12006 F i B &M Payment of 2006 final
AR¥0.090T (ZFZRHF : dividend of Rmb0.090
AR¥0.0617T) (2005: Rmb0.061) per share 123,913 77,742

13.

EETEEATERREREARK0.091
T(ZZEZERF : AR¥0.0907L) @ L1k
FEAFERERSHE -

BiREH

BREFMDRAFEFERIN AR
1,627,979,000t( — T T XN F: AR
#1,024,581,0007T ) & & 4 N # F 15
2 & £31,359,981,000 ( — T =T /X & :
1,274,451,0000% )51 & o

AESySRANBRZFETE  BEE
20074 12A318 k20065128318 (L M
EFEERE 2 SRBFRIERE -

The final dividend for 2007 of Rmb0.091 (2006: Rmb0.090)
per share has been proposed by the board of directors of the
Company and is subject to approval by the shareholders in

the forthcoming annual general meeting.

13.EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year of approximately Rmb1,527,979,000 (2006:
Rmb1,024,581,000) and on the weighted average number of
shares of 1,359,981,000 (2006: 1,274,451,000).

No diluting events existed as the Company did not have any

potential shares for the two years or at each of the balance

sheet dates. Accordingly, diluted earnings per share amounts
for the two years ended 31st December 2007 and 2006 have
not been disclosed.

£002-900Z Hoday jenuuy paiwi] Auedwo)) juswdinb3 semod uigieH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_ZTLFT-_A=t—HILFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2007

14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

AEE THE GROUP
R
KR RERRHE
RiERHE Furniture, EHTE KBTI
EEES Plant and fixtures and Motor Construction- st
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles  in-progress Total
ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
BE COST
R=E5:5-8-R At 1st January, 2006 1,219,128 2,555,267 266,847 68,190 492,824 4,602,256
NE Additions 10,486 31,628 7935 7246 422,820 480,115
WERBARA Acquisition from subsidiaries 13,013 17626 1517 1,766 1,825 35,747
g Transfers 54,747 259,335 14,627 8,454 (337163) -
B LhAEEA Transferred to prepaid
lease payments - - - - (37.716) (37.716)
EFiEEA Transferred to patents - - - = (8,994) (8,994 )
s Written off (949) (23,480) 3,587) 3,050) - (31,066
BE Disposals (700) (8,232) (4,953) 8,940) - (22,825
R-E5+5-f-R At 1st January, 2007 1,295,725 2,832,144 282,386 73,666 533,596 5,017517
E b Reclassification - (69,902) - 69,902 - =
e Additions 6,430 78,548 22,167 84,852 457,652 649,649
B Transfers 20,408 148,681 27202 9,664 (205,955) -
fisH Written off (1,509) (72,817) (14,626) - - (88,952 |
BE Disposals (8,780) (44,390) (24,941) (4,009 - (82,120)
R=FFtE+-A=t—H At 31st December, 2007 1,312,274 2,872,264 292,188 234,075 785,293 5,496,094
RitiE DEPRECIATION
R=E5/ 5-A-H At 1st January 2006 443,508 1,491,491 126,382 37525 = 2,098,906
REERRE Charge for the year 44,574 213,456 27667 10,758 - 296,455
s Written off (792) (21,897) 1,872) (3,921) - (28,482 )
REMNEH Eliminated on disposals (104) (5,748) (37) 5,259) - (11,148
RZETLE-A-H At 1st January, 2007 487186 1,677,302 152,140 39,103 - 2,355,731
ELior] Reclassification - (53,962) - 53,962 - =
TEERfE Charge for the year 44,470 274,739 31,628 21,642 = 372,479
HEER Impairment = = - 36,586 10,300 46,886
HEERER Reversal of impairment - 537) 33) - - (570
s Written off (168) (60,399) (13,670) - - (74,237)
REMNEH Eliminated on disposals (2,096) (42,168) (12,511) (3,468) - (60,243 )
R=BFtE+-B=+—H At 31st December, 2007 529,392 1,794,975 157,554 147,825 10,300 2,640,046
REFE NET BOOK VALUE
RZFFtE+-A=+—H At 31st December, 2007 782,882 1,077,289 134,634 86,250 774,993 2,856,048
R=FZ E+-A=1+—H At 31st December, 2006 808,539 1,154,842 130,246 34,563 533,596 2,661,786
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

AAT THE COMPANY
&
BE RERRE
RiFR S Furniture, ERIR EEIR
RERE Plant and fixtures and Motor  Construction- @t
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles in-progress Total
ARETT AREBTT ARBTT ARETR ARETTL ARETIL
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb'000
RE CoST
RZEEAE—F—A At 1st January, 2006 184,641 50,516 40,530 4,899 64,106 344,692
HE Additions - - 560 349 94,182 95,091
e Transfer 15,286 47135 (13,551) - (48,870) -
BLiHEEA Transferred to prepaid
lease payments - - - - (37.716) (37716
RZE2Z+5-A-R At 1st January, 2007 199,927 97651 27539 5,248 71,702 402,067
RE Additions 16,576 - 10,985 1,338 56,843 85,742
&E Disposals - (10,671) - - - (10,671)
RZBFLE+ZAZ+—H At 31st December, 2007 216,503 86,980 38,524 6,586 128,545 477138
AitHE DEPRECIATION
RZEERE—-F—A At 1st January, 2006 15,409 7237 8,278 2,951 - 33,875
rEEEE Charge for the year 6,688 15,381 2,346 397 - 24,812
RZET2+F-F—A At 1st January, 2007 22,097 22,618 10,624 3,348 - 58,687
REERE Charge for the year 5,908 8,450 12,845 454 - 27657
REMEH Eliminated on disposals - (7747 ) = = = (7747)
R=BFtFE+ZBA=1+-B At 31st December, 2007 28,005 23,321 23,469 3,802 - 78,597
REFE NET BOOK VALUE
R=BFLETZA=+-H At 31st December, 2007 188,498 63,659 15,055 2,784 128,545 398,541
WZZEXET-A=1—H At 31st December, 2006 177830 75,033 16,915 1,900 71,702 343,380
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_ZTLFT-_A=t—HILFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2007

15.15 B ME :  15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

F£@ : THE GROUP

AREF T

Rmb'000

5% COST
R_EZF—H—H At 1st January, 2006 311,670
FE#EA Transferred from inventories 21,914
RZZTZE+F—H—H At 1st January, 2007 333,584
NE Additions 8,956
NR-ZBFtE+=-H=+—H At 31st December, 2007 342,540
REIHIRE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
RZZTZERF—H—H At 1st January, 2006 14,869
AE SR AR Charge for the year 15,640
RZZTZE+F—H—H At 1st January, 2007 30,509
NEERE Charge for the year 21,906
BERME Impairment loss 2,520
NR-ZFFtFE+=-HA=+—H At 31st December, 2007 54,935
RREF{E CARRYING AMOUNT
NR-ZFBFtFE+=-H=+—H At 31st December, 2007 287,605
RZTZEXF+-_A=+—H At 31st December, 2006 303,075
EEERRAEEREMEEEFEEZLE The directors consider that the carrying amounts approximate
REMBAREE - their fair value.
AR B Y 25 LAB % B LL I B AR 5 o The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-

line basis at rate of 5%.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2007

15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

comprises:

(continued)

The carrying amount of investment properties shown above

2007 2006
AREFR AREFTT
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
EHREEFEE Land in the PRC
R HRAE 4 Medium-term lease 267,306 281,624
MHEIFR LY Short-term lease 20,299 21,451
287,605 303,075
16. B THIEE 16.PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
XEE THE GROUP
ARETTT
Rmb'000
B COST
R-_FE F—A—H At 1st January, 2006 431,526
B - BERZHEEA Transferred from property, plant and equipment 37,716
WEEF B~ A8 A Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries 9,410
R-—ZTZEt&—A—H At 1st January, 2007 478,652
NE Additions 9,617
R-BFtE+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2007 488,269
RatEe ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
R_FEE F—A—H At 1st January, 2006 96,062
NEF Amortise for the year 10,589
R=—ZTZEt&—A—H At 1st January, 2007 106,651
ANFE Amortise for the year 11,760
R-BFtE+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2007 118,411
IREF{E NET BOOK VALUE
R-TBTtE+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2007 369,858
RZZEZF+-_A=+—H At31st December, 2006 372,001
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_ZTLFT-_A=t—HILFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2007

16.PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (continued)

AEENENLHESERTEARIMER
W) 30 R » AN L HERIBREE

The Group's prepaid lease payments represent medium-term

land use rights in the PRC. They are analysed for reporting

BHEE2HMWT : purpose as follows:
2007 2006
AREFRT ARBTIT
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
TRENEB A Current portion 11,760 10,589
SERENE Non-current portion 358,098 361,412
369,858 372,001
XAT THE COMPANY
ARETIT
Rmb’000
%3 COST
RZZETF—A—H At 1st January 2006 =
BE - BEREHEEA Transferred from property, plant and equipment 37716
RZZET+F—HF—H At 1st January, 2007 37,716
NE Additions 1,093
R-F|FELtE+-A=+—H At 31st December, 2007 38,809
Rty ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
R_TZE F—A—H At 1st January 2006 =
NEFF Amortise for the year 1,753
RZZZ+F—HF—H At 1st January, 2007 1,753
REE Amortise for the year 754
R-ZBTtE+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2007 2,507
IREF{E NET BOOK VALUE
R-FBFLtE+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2007 36,302
R-TZEXE+-H=+—H At31st December, 2006 35,963
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE-TTLFT-AS+-ALEE
For the year ended 31st December, 2007

16.PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (continued)

The Company's prepaid lease payments represent medium-term
land use rights in the PRC. They are analysed for reporting

REEDHET purpose as follows:
2007 2006
ARETR ARBET T
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
TR ENEB Current portion 754 1,753
EmBE D Non-current portion 35,548 34,210
36,302 35,963
B 17. PATENTS
*rEE THE GROUP
ARBFT
Rmb’000
%N COST
RZTZE E—H—H At 1st January 2006 54,313
NE Additions 11,805
mYE  BEREHEEA Transferred from property, plant and equipment 8,994
WM B A REA Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries 17,535
RZZETt+F—-H—H At 1st January, 2007 92,647
NE Additions 132,174
R-ZFEFtE+-HA=+—H At 31st December, 2007 224,821
BERRE AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
RZTE F—A—H At 1st January 2006 5,013
REFEE Charge for the year 11,008
EER Impairment loss 3,000
R-_ZEE+F—H—H At 1st January, 2007 19,021
REFEE Charge for the year 71,195
AR Impairment loss 8,403
RZFEFtE+-HA=+—H At 31st December, 2007 98,619
REFE CARRYING AMOUNT
R=ZBZtE+-H=+—H At 31st December, 2007 126,202
RZZZEXF+-A=+—H At 31st December, 2006 73,626
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_ZTLFT-_A=t—HILFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2007

17. BRE(E)

ZENEBHO B R ERABRR R EEE
A -

ZEENNERBRAIE10FL BIRE KR
HEEERFRAEH

18 BERERE

17. PATENTS (continued)

The amortisation expense has been included in “administrative

expenses” in the consolidated income statement.

The above patents have definite useful lives and are amortised

on a straight-line basis over 3 to 10 years.

18.DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

FREIEELEHREBROT ¢ The following are the major deferred tax balances recognised
and movements thereon during the current year:
FEWTIRER -
Hith R &
FEZREERE
Impairment
of trade
and other
debtors, and EstEaRE Hity &t
inventories  Provisions Others Total
AR®TT AR®TT ARETT AR%TR
Rmb’'000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
RZZTZERER At 1st January, 2006 and
—TTLF-A—H 1st January, 2007 = - - -
BIGERRK Credit to consolidated

income statement

62,251 18,854 6,000 87,105

M-ZZ+FE+-A=+—H At31st December, 2007 62,251 18,854 6,000 87,105
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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19.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

THE COMPANY

2007 2006
ARETRT ARBET T
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
&R A Investment, at cost
R B 3E b A A Unlisted in the PRC 2,262,001 2,101,593
FE W Bt B A R 5RIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 996,022 1,605,748
FEAH B B A R ZIE Amounts due to subsidiaries (323,330) (8,753)
2,934,693 3,698,588
WEREEEEEEE WEEBRTER The amounts due are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
HY o : are repayable on demand.
B A B 2 st E R =l IAKT:E43 © Details of subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to the financial
: statements.
20. REE AT 2 HEL 20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
AEHE AT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006

ARBETFR ARETE ARBTRT ARBTRT
Rmb’000  Rmb’000  Rmb’000  Rmb'000

REIE LTS R ERERA

FEIGRE AR Wk
OB 2 BRI 12)

FEM B & A B IA

FEfT B & X B ROR

BB FRIA TR e % 8
HA o

Cost of investment in associates

unlisted in the PRC 87,873 87273 17,740 17,740
Share of post-acquisition profits,

net of dividend received 41,418 4,569 24,071 -

Amounts due from associates 377 84,864 - 6

Amounts due to associates (1,567) (8,258) - -

128,101 168,448 41,81 17,746

R ERBEER The amounts due are unsecured, non-interest bearing and

are repayable on demand.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_ZTLFT-_A=t—HILFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2007

R2007F 128318 - AEEHLE QA 2+

20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

As at 31st December, 2007, the Group had interests in the

B : following associates:
aEZILE
Proportion of
ATRRER/ nominal value
B3 FATRE of issued
ATER Place/ EEfTkE capital/
Form of Country of IEEEY BEEE registered BERME
LS business incorporation/ Principal place Classof capital held Proportion of TELEED
Name of entity structure registration of operation Share held by the Group  voting power held Principal activity
BESRRERE R PEARLAE HEARANE LAk 41% 41% BRER  TRERR
(RERIERERAT Established PRC PRC Ordinary SHERLLL RER
R
Provision of maintenance,
installation and
on-site services
to owners of turhines,
boilers and electricity
generators
BESEAKEARRE *u HEAR£RIE EINS ] Lk 50% 50%  EEEURE
BREfAF Established PRC PRC Ordinary Manufacture of
electrical
equipments
BREREAEIRARAT Fal hEARAANE EINSC LR 27.28% 2728% RREEERHESRERY
Established PRC PRC Ordinary Provision of
quality control
services for boilers
manufacturing
BRETRERRRERAT Fal hEARAANE EINSC LR 44.56% 44.56% ERHERRHH
Established PRC PRC Ordinary Manufacture & sale
of minteral
beverages
WERUE NRENRE R HEARANE REARANE 2k 43.69% 4369%  REENRERM
REERAA Established PRC PRC Ordinary Development of
power equipment
technology
BEETREMAEERAR Fal hEARAANE EINSC LR 43.69% 43.69% Ik R
Established PRC PRC Ordinary Provision of
petrol station
services
REETTERERR Ewl hEARAAE REARANE 2Rk 43.69% 4369%  RESEEINRG
GEUEYN Established PRC PRC Ordinary Development of
new technology
on power machine tools
BEEREZkERE EOA hEARAANE EINSC LR 41.72% 41.72% KN%E
BEREfAH Established PRC PRC Ordinary Hydropower
generation
REEERENIRERAA Fal HEARLRIE REARENE LAk 33.50% 33.50% ENIE
Established PRC PRC Ordinary Provision of
power engineering
TR BB R Fal EIN G EINS LR 30% 30% igidio
Established PRC PRC Ordinary Provision of

traveling services
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20. R B AT 2 (E) :  20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
REEZHE NGz HEERHREWNT ¢ The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's

associates is set out below:

113

2007 2006

AR®TxT ARETF T

Rmb’000 Rmb’'000

BB B Total assets 600,731 554,632

HAE Total liabilities (306,037) (327.173)

FEE Net assets 294,694 227459
EEA A HEE QA Group's share of net assets

BEMGHEE of associates 129,290 91,842

A Revenue 513,922 482,502

ARE % F Profit for the year 80,225 35,715

RELEBAFNHEE AT Group's share of results
TEBAY i A of associates for the year 37,449 11,965
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_ZTLFT-_A=t—HILFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2007

21.AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

B MR AR AN Available-for-sale investments comprise:
AEE AATF
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
AREBETRT AR®T ARETR ARBTT
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000 Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
PR EMESHEE Unlisted equity securities
—RERABERMELEH  in the PRC, at cost
less impairment 28,074 30,947 17,879 17,879

FEMBESREREEHPERINIELD
RRBTHBRREES - ESREERER
B MPRRARREEFROFEGE
ARBFEABNEZERERAUERRERR
MEERRUBESHNAIABERELA S

The unlisted equity investments represent investments in
unlisted equity securities issued by private entities incorporated
in the PRC. They are measured at cost less impairment at
each balance sheet date because the range of reasonable

fair value estimates is so wide that the directors of the

HER Company are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be
measured reliably.
22.58 22.INVENTORIES
*EE AAF

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARETT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
R Raw materials 3,410,013 3,469,434 2,167 1,730
8 Work in progress 5,744,762 6,866,210 163,068 246,229
S Finished goods 663,877 752,116 8,297 4,261
FEHER A Properties under development 218,485 242,361 - =
ARHE 2 EIEMZEM  Completed properties held for sale 130,152 173,570 - =
10,167,289 11,503,691 173,532 252,220
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23. FEMCBR SR FEMWG =R H b FEMER & | 23.TRADE DEBTORS/BILLS RECEIVABLE/OTHER DEBTORS,
ERFEMGRE g DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
BTFREZEEHZSTHER » —BIZERNR The credit terms given to the customers vary and are generally
PrBHBERMNE - ATEREEHEKE based on the financial strengths of individual customers. In
FTHEEZ EERR  AEEEHBRBEESE order to effectively manage the credit risks associated with
R - trade debtors, credit evaluations of customers are performed

: periodically.
2007 2006
ARETT AR®ET T
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
JE L2 R 3K Trade debtors 9,819,274 7,142,217
B R ERE Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (824,709) (564,282)
8,994,565 6,577,935
FEW R IE Bills receivable 208,710 316,855
H h fEUGR Other debtors,
e RIBFIE deposits and prepayments 5,339,159 6,049,210
14,542,434 12,944,000
ReEd AEHEREEENERER RS The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors net of
DT allowance for doubtful debts at the balance sheet date:
2007 2006
ARETR ARBET T
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
1FER Within 1 year 6,000,510 4,822,335
1FEE2F 1 to 2 years 2,083,009 1,537,061
2FEIF 2 to 3 years 860,094 200,477
3F LA E Over 3 years 50,952 18,062

8,994,565 6,57 7,5

£002-900Z Hoday [enuuy paywi] Auedwo) uswdinbl Jjemod uigieH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_ZTLFT-_A=t—HILFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2007

FEUWBRSR FEWEHE Hibh rEW R ik 23.TRADE DEBTORS/BILLS RECEIVABLE/OTHER DEBTORS,
ERFRRIAE) : DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)
EWERFUREEENES N T : Movement in allowance for doubtful debts of trade debtors:
2007 2006
ARETT AREFTT
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
F Y Balance at beginning of the year 564,282 346,137
FE W SR E B R RE R Impairment losses recognized on receivables 262,962 222,528
AEEWE miEE 4%  Amounts written off as uncollectible (2,535) =
FAEWE A SRR Amounts recovered during the year - (4,383)
FREH Balance at end of the year 824,709 564,282
ZEERFFAZ+BNMZTETLF+ The fair value of the Group's trade debtors and other debtors
A=t HBSERERKEXRMEMELRY at 31st December, 2007 and 2006 approximates to the
ARBEELINEEROEREE®R - corresponding carrying amount.
BESHEEK(FER)FH 24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT
WORK
FKE
THE GROUP
2007 2006
ARETR ARET T
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
REEBRNEESR : Contracts in progress
at the balance sheet date:
ESHKA Contract costs incurred 10,087,702 8,184,845
FE(5 & AR A 18 R BB Recognised profits less recognized losses 25,425 42,480
10,113,127 8,227325
B BB T REEFIA  Less: Progress billings (7,238,851) (5,373,250)
2,874,276 2,854,075
Hep Represented by:
EEARERER Amounts due from customers included
in current assets 3,632,591 3,541,262
EiEs REMARK Amounts due to customers included
in current liabilities (758,315) (687,187)
2,874,276 2,854,075
BE-_ZTENFE+-_A=+—BHN=_FF+ As at 31st December, 2007 and 2006, there were no retentions

F+-_A=1+—HI ' WERTENEES held by customers for contract works.

[F T -
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25. W (R RARMEAS BABAS

BRERKIA
*&H

26.RITHEM  BENREEFEY

25.AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES/

RELATED COMPANIES/SHAREHOLDERS
THE GROUP

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are
repayable on demand. The fair value of the amounts at 31st
December, 2007 and 2006 approximates to the corresponding

carrying amount.

26.BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

F5RE F4F
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006

ARBTFRE ARBTT ARBETRE ARETE
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000 Rmb’000 Rmb’'000

RITEFRBAE
318 A MBI I8 E HifF 3R

within 3 months

Cash and bank balances

Time deposits, matured

3B AAEEIH M ERFF  Bank deposits, matured

over 3 months

HIER-_ZTZ+F+_A=+—RHIEHA
K #6,665,175,00070(2006%F : A R #
5,013,653,00070 ) B F R A #E A R 1 E
BERTT + E L AR IR INEE 19 S
B AR E) SNEIE HE AR o

R-ETE+FE+-_A=+—HEXNETT
15 3 H) K 0 #E 5 {8 53.28% (20064 :
2.43%) °

EEeRnREEERLEMNARER-

8,331,542 4,845,708 890,545 939,437
350,000 311,554 300,000 =
8,681,542 5,157,262 1,190,545 939,437
940,000 581,209 - 433,307

As at 31st December, 2007, a total of Rmb6,665,175,000
(2006: Rmb5,013,653,000) were denominated in Renminbi
and deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of
these Renminbi denominated balances into foreign currencies
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

The weighted average effective interest rates on bank deposits
as at 31st December, 2007 were 3.28% (2006: 2.43%).

The directors consider that the carrying amounts approximate

their fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_ZTLFT-_A=t—HILFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2007

27. FEfHRRTRH fb FE 14 30 R FE T B R

27. TRADE CREDITORS/OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUED

CHARGES
AEE AEAT

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
ARETFT ARETT AREFRT ARETT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
FEATBR X Trade creditors 5,267,391 6,539,743 385,629 308,792

H b RN ERE A Other creditors and

accrued charges 2,757,797 1,470,850 261,283 363,137
8,025,188 8,010,593 646,912 671,929

REERENERRZREDTAT

An aged analysis of trade creditors at the balance sheet date

is as follows:

FEE

THE GROUP
2007 2006
AREBTR AREFTT
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
1FE R Within 1 year 3,522,251 4,861,066
1FEZE26 1 to 2 years 1,298,712 1,534,830
29 E3F 2 to 3 years 305,767 63,917
3FELAE Over 3 years 140,661 79,930
5,267,391 6,539,743
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28.BUgiee

29.

*&EH

BEhReREEFANIENBERTE K
BrzEERE - ERiEE&HR B A
R #1,621,598,00070(2006 : A R ¥
1,510,798,0007t ) A& E B & + =& A
THBRB I Z2ANRE  HEAERBE
& MEKRIBHNAREERRT_@EARX
AR IMNEEIRES  WEARDE
& BReHEREEHEERTINEGR
{g o

TEREERFFT A= —HMZZEZELF
“A=+T—HBRMAREEEONEENERE
fB1E -

RiERABIRIE
r*EH

2R
REBRARRBELEHRBETTERFTEZ
B% - 95l A ARM103,478,000L( ==&
TRE : AR¥274,651,00000) R AR
478,0007c(=ZFZ <4 : AK%3,000,000
TT) o BEERAEB1E(ZZTZT/NF 557
[E) o WHIE A EIKE B EE T E KR -
—EERFT A=+ HANZZEZTLF T+
ZA=t—BNARBEELINEENEE
B8 -

A

RIZERR A BIRIB 48R A A RHE142,702,000
T(ZZEZTRF : ARK¥223,600,0007T)
ZERER  ERFEXRRSIE(ZZZT XS
F 5,762 ) o bR E E R UG -
I RFEEEEBREH - EEEREBRH
EOTZ@EARN  THERKFENHRE - A
HEARHAEE —EEAF+ A=
—BM-_ZEB+EFE+-_A=T—HW2REE
B BRTEEE o

28.DEPOSITS RECEIVED

THE GROUP

The amount represents the progress payments received
from customers in respect of work in progress. Included in
deposits received of approximately Rmb1,621,598,000 (2006:
Rmb1,510,798,000) were the progress payments received in
respect of contract works to be commenced twelve months
from the balance sheet date and were classified in the balance
sheet as non-current. The remaining balance represents deposit
received for contract works to be commenced within one
year and were classified as current liabilities. The deposits
received will be used to set-off the contract price upon the

completion of contract works.

The fair value of the amount at 31st December, 2007 and 2006

approximates to the corresponding carrying amount.

29.ADVANCE FROM HOLDING COMPANY

THE GROUP

Current

The balances of the advance from holding company comprises
of non interest-bearing and interest-bearing loans amounting
to Rmb103,478,000 (2006: Rmb274,551,000) and Rmb478,000
(2006: Rmb3,000,000) respectively with effective interest rate
of 5.51% (2006: 5.51%) per annum. The amount is unsecured
and repayable within one year. The fair value of the amount
at 31st December, 2007 and 2006 is approximate to the

corresponding carrying amount.

Non-current

The balance of the advance from holding company is the
interest-bearing loans amounting to Rmb142,702,000 (2006:
Rmb223,600,000) with effective interest rate of 5.76 % (2006:
5.76%) per annum and have no fixed repayment term. The
amount will not be demanded for repayment in the next
twelve months of the balance sheet date and, accordingly, the
amounts have been classified as non-current liabilities. Their

fair value at 31st December, 2007 and 2006 approximates to

their carrying value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31st December, 2007

30.fEXRXH & 30.TAX LIABILITIES
AEE EAT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
AREFT ARETT AREFRT ARETT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
HEH Value added tax 535,772 257,295 (15,110)  (70,478)
EER Enterprise income tax 406,816 202,201 58,493 28,073
) Business tax 20,311 3,686 14,517 6,648
Hh Others 94,327 27,794 3,590 490
fEXT S, (RIREIFIIE)  Tax liabilities/(Tax recoverables) 1,057,226 490,976 61,490 (35,267)
31. 18 31.BORROWINGS
AEE XAT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
ARETRT AREBETIT AREFRT ARETT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
RITE Bank loans 4,668,010 4,264,922 200,000 475,000
H b &3k Other loans 95,269 108,116 27,420 =
4,763,279 4,373,038 227,420 475,000
ER Secured 4,472,810 574,722 - 340,000
FEHER Unsecured 290,469 3,798,316 227,420 135,000
4,763,279 4,373,038 227,420 475,000
BRERBFRAOT : The borrowings are repayable
as follows:
—FR Within one year 753,387 501,117 200,000 220,000
—Z=hE More than one year but
not more than five years 2,470,336 2,454,000 - 255,000
HEMNE Over five years 1,639,556 1,417,921 27,420 =
4,763,279 4,373,038 227,420 475,000
B —FRBEHNEEEE Less: Amounts due within
one year classified
as current liabilities (753,387) (501,117) (200,000) (220,000)
4,009,892 3,871,921 27,420 255,000
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ZELF+_A=+—HIFE

For the year ended 31st December, 2007

3™ (&)

RITERNEESRIATINEEREN

31.BORROWINGS (continued)

The carrying amount of the bank loans are denominated in
the following currencies:

AEE AAT

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2007 2006 2007 2006
ARETRT ARBTI AREFRT ARBTT
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000 Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
AR Rmb 4,251,956 4,373,038 227,420 475,000
ETT uUsD 511,323 = - =
4,763,279 4,373,038 227,420 475,000
MERNFTMENEEBERFKREISI%E All of the Group's borrowings carrying at rates ranging from

6.16% /38 - ARFXEERFN AR -

BHIER—TTLF+-_A=+—H &~&H
$R1TfE XA R #200,000,0007T(20064F :
AR #340,000,0007T )9 A e MR E Bk ER
HEEAR((BREE@MAADER -

FR AEBHEERXARE
1,321,956,0007T ° 1#&%!%%%&52@5
ME - BRBR/_ZZENE_ZT——F
FEUEFHRERELES -

EEeRAREAEEEAR MO AE
on

3.51% to 6.16% at both years. The contracted interest rates

are equal to the effective interest rates.

At 31st December, 2007 Rmb200,000,000 (2006:
Rmb340,000,000) of the Group's bank borrowings are
guaranteed by Harbin Power Plant Equipment Group Corporation
("HPEGC").

During the year, the Group obtained new loans in the amount
of Rmb1,321,956,000. The loans bear interest at fixed rate and
floating rate and will be repayable starting from 2008 to 2011.

These loans were used for working capital of operation.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the

borrowings approximate their fair value.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2007

32. 1% 32.SHARE CAPITAL
2007 2006
ARETT AREFIT
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
Bl - EBTRAR : Registered, issued and fully paid:
BEAEEAREREE State owned equity interest
ARE1TT shares of Rmb1 each 701,235 711,470
HESRmMEARE 1T H Shares of Rmb1 each 675,571 562,981
1,376,806 1,274,451
MR ARZ g T - The movements in share capital are as follows:
BITHIRA
BEITRRHE Issued B8
Number of share Share @t
shares in issue capital premium Total
ARETT AR%®TT ARETR
Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb'000
RZZEZF—HF—H At 1st January, 2006 1,274,451,000 1,274,451 1,089,089 2,363,540
k=TT +F—H—H & 2007
BEITHRR Issue of H shares 112,590,000 112,590 914,623  1,027213
BITEH Share issue expenses = = (23,417) (23,417)
RS YN L LA Conversion of state owned
equity interest shares (10,235,000) (10,235) = (10,235)
R-BBtEFE+=-HA=+—H At 31st December, 2007 1,376,806,000 1,376,806 1,980,295 3,357,101

—ET+FE=ZAZH REAINBREE

On 2nd March, 2007, the Company has issued 112,590,000

107e( A& R ARBEIIGIL)BETT
112,590,000 HIX T ik E B A R 17T ©
£ Ft A #1 % 17 WHA&R & + 10,235,000 H
REBEBEZARERMAK - £EFHELD
75 #1,002,268,0007t(HH & RN 4 A R ¥
993,748,0007T) * EHKRAERI & B4 B K
23,618,000 T (HHE R4 A K #23,417,000
JT) °

H shares of Rmb1 each at a price of HK$10 (equivalent to
approximately Rmb9.915) per share. Of all the newly issued
H shares, 10,235,000 H shares were converted from the
stated owned equity interest shares. The aggregate net
proceeds were approximately HK$1,002,268,000 (equivalent
to approximately Rmb993,748,000) after deducting related
expenses for the placing of approximately HK$23,618,000
(equivalent to approximately Rmb23,417,000).
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3285 A (&)

KBZZTTRNF+= A+ BB BT
R - ERAEHR EMAIRE - 2o 2 A
Bl B EAREHEEEH IR 710,235,500
BEARZEHR - WEEKABRQAIHR -
BONARHRFPRABEEFEARE
99,375,000C EH It B R - EXREER
BHEARERANZEREEE R GBERES
REES o

Bk B AM) S A B SRR S (R DA B 8 o B35 A R
SNEFERRGI TR - BAEARMHERAE
Hib 7 EBER e

32.SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Pursuant to a resolution at the annual general meeting on
7th December, 2006 and approvals from relevant government
authorities during the listing of the Company's H shares, certain
of the Company's State-owned equity interest shareholders
converted an aggregate of 10,235,500 State-owned equity
interest shares into H shares and offered them in the placement
of the Company’'s H shares. Net proceeds of approximately
Rmb99,375,000 obtained from the newly issued H shares
were related to such conversion and such proceeds would be
remitted to the National Council for the Social Security Fund in

accordance with the relevant PRC government requirement.

Except for the currency in which dividends are paid and
restrictions as to whether the shareholders can be PRC
investors or foreign investors, state owned equity interest
shares and H shares rank pari passu in all respects with
each other.
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33.6%E
AEH

AEEAFERER LFREHERNGHREDE
MAMBEHRRFORZEFABRGETK

33.RESERVES

THE GROUP

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 69 of

the financial statements.

b, /| THE COMPANY
EERE AT ALE
BAfE AES Statutory
RARE Statutory Statutory public REiaH
Share capital surplus welfare Retained B R
premium reserve reserve fund profits Total
AREBTT ARETRT ARETT AR%®Tn ARt ARETR
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
RZZZ FE—-F—H At 1st January, 2006 1,089,089 709,849 112,380 112,380 77,942 2,101,640
REERT Profit for the year = = = - 187,639 187,639
B Transfer to reserves - - 215,187 (112,380) (102,807) -
Bids Dividends = = = = (77742) (77742)
RZEE+E-HA-H At st January, 2007 1,089,089 709,849 327567 - 85,032 2,211,537
REERT Profit for the year - - - - 367,997 367,997
RARIEE Issue of share capital 914,623 - - - - 914,623
RALEER Share issue expense (23,417) = - = = (23,417)
i Transfer to reserves - - 37975 (37,975) -
BE Dividends - - - = (123,913) (123,913)
RZBFtE+=A=+—H At 31st December, 2007 1,980,295 709,849 365,542 - 291,141 3,346,827
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4. HFEE 34.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
2007 2006
AREBTR ARBTTT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
BB A =) A INED Guarantee given to banks and financial
F=7 ERRMEER institutions in respect of general

banking facilities granted

to external parties 168,890 186,340

ARARINBARGBREREREREETA
A 2007 1M A21BEFREMNHTEIE
BEBRAR  BHEEHAODEERE
MR RERAERL  BXERETRE
Lk AR #32,951,0005T ° =M HE
TE#MEARAARFAAREEHRHK
AR #23,489,6487T ° B AL R IEfEHE
q: o

35.BEHE
SE{EAHBEAN
FRAYWEHERALD B ARE24,479,000
JC(20064 : AR #¥26,170,0007T) » A&
BUAHEAENMBENMEELEELETSF
HERRESWLMAE WA - —HIFTIEE N
ENBEBEALFHEE1Z206F -

EEERBERA  AKREMNAHEAESOR

Harbin Boiler Factory LLP (MEREMEMREREEAA), a
subsidiary of the Company, initiated a proceeding against
Taizhou Sangong Heavy Machinery Steel Pipes Co. Ltd.
(FINTETE#MEBR AR on 21st November, 2007 for
economic losses of the Company arising from the provision
by the latter of large diameter pipes not according to the
specification. A direct economic loss of Rmb32,951,000 was
claimed as compensation. It was counterclaimed by Taizhou
Sangong Heavy Machinery Steel Pipes Co. Ltd. that a debtor
of Rmb23,489,648 was due by the Company. This litigation
is now in process.

35.0PERATING LEASES

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was approximately
Rmb24,479,000 (2006: Rmb26,170,000). The Group's properties
held for rental purposes are expected to generate rental yields
of 8% on an ongoing basis. All of the properties held have
committed tenants ranging from 1 to 20 years.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with

EHREERN KBS - tenants for the following future minimum lease receivables:
2007 2006

ARETR ARBET T

Rmb’000 Rmb'000

—FR Within one year 40,276 43,900
—ERF In the second to fifth year inclusive 147,836 151,921
AFi& After five years 254,568 290,642
442,680 486,463

RZBZLET_A=T—HNZZZRF
“A=t—HB ARESELEEE X

At 31st December, 2007 and 2006, the Group had no
commitments under operating leases.
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R-ZBT+FE+-A=+—8  AEEEE
HEFELH A ARY267394,1667L (2006 :
A R #259,890,3647T ) 2 &% & ) 3 LA &
4 A R #169,684,0007T(2006 : A R ¥
40,500,0007T ) SR1TIF RIE A B RARITE T
REBETFEENERS -

38. B kEFI5TEI

RE-NANANFRENRE - ARERIZR
KRN TRRETHERRERER
REENRREES AKERRABRIE
ARTIEN2%HNEREEZES BT
HEATENBRMN - iz Ll BREF
RHRBRREZESIN EBEHA - &
SEEZRATE N D RARE RERKEH
XHEME BERER  AREREEANER
REFERBAHEE  ERETHEEZ
T ERERA BREKEISAEAT
ERRBFERFTHE - UNRHBRETHLE
RREXERRRAEEXNERAKET
EBEMR  RREARPHERSAEN
SHEE YARRETHERRERER
BXf4ERKRET - WHBERR - AEME
REEXNEARE RRENSTHEE -

36. &F &I 36.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
2007 2006
ARETR AREET T
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
BEWE  BEEE Capital expenditure for the acquisition of
&R property, plant and equipment
—BEEHERR - contracted for but not provided
B SRR P in the financial statements 909,275 336,953
37. EERW 37. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31st December, 2007, the Group had pledged investment
properties having a net book value of approximately
Rmb267,394,166 (2006: Rmb259,890,364) and bank
deposits amounting to approximately Rmb169,684,000
(2006: Rmb40,500,000) to secure certain of Group's trading
facilities.

38.RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

In accordance with regulations issued by the local government
in 1996, the Group is required to make contributions to a
defined contribution retirement fund which is administered
by the Harbin Social Insurance Administration Bureau of the
local government. The Group is required to contribute 22%
of the basic salary of its existing PRC staff, while employees
contribute 8% of their basic salary. Apart from the above, the
Group is also obliged to pay pensions and retirement benefits
during the transition period. During the transition period,
pension payments are calculated by reference to the staff's
monthly basic salaries and period of service and are paid by
the Harbin Social Insurance Administration Bureau and the
Group. After the transition period, pension payments will be
paid by the Harbin Social Insurance Administration Bureau
only by reference to the payable amount of individual saving
account and the Group has no material obligation for the

pension payments or any post-retirement benefits beyond

the annual contributions described above.
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39.FBk N L3R5
(i) EEEARFMRRMBARNR S, fEF

RARABIRZZEZTWMF+—ANBFBE
EEAREE-FHBEREENRED
R % - R ARREANR T
MNE+—ACAMBEEERE L HE
BEFAR o REBFHE - AEENTH
BEERMEKRREERLES
A AR #50,4770007t(2006%F : AR
#44,239,0007T) X AR %9,717,0007T
(20064 : AR¥8,775,0007T) °

HE_ZT+E+-_A=+—0H K&
B FREEE ZHERRRMERE
& & A K #309,080,0007T (20064 :
AR #84,703,0007T) °

REER  RESEMRITREER
RARABRE—REERE -

BRAREZERARRBZIGR  FL2EH
729 e

(DMEMTEREEENZ S,

AEBENEL B EXREE AP EK
FHERAEXZEHNER(BEAERLE) ° It
Sh - REBA S 32 i BB S
MEESEN D - BT NHREEEI
REAE(DRBEORBRRRZ SN - A
SEbRHEGBECELEEAR -EFE
RAPLBEELEERERSEERE L2
BUE=TF o

39.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i)

(ii)

Transactions/balance with holding company and fellow
subsidiaries

On 8th November, 2004, the Company entered into a
3-year service agreement with HPEGC for the provision
of welfare and supporting services. This agreement was
a renewal of the original services agreement signed with
HPEGC on 7th November, 2004. Pursuant to the above
agreements, the service fees paid to and received from
HPEGC and its subsidiaries amounted to approximately
Rmb50,477,000 (2006: Rmb44,239,000) and Rmb9,717,000
(2006: Rmb8,775,000) respectively.

For the year ended 31st December, 2007, the Group made
purchases from subsidiaries of HPEGC amounting to
approximately Rmb309,080,000 (2006: Rmb84,703,000).

At the balance sheet date, credit facilities granted by
certain banks to the Company were secured by corporate
guarantee given by HPEGC.

For details of the arrangement concerning balances with

holding company, see note 29.

Transactions/balances with other state-controlled entities
in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by entities directly or indirectly owned or
controlled by the PRC government (“state— controlled
entities”). In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger
group of companies under HPEGC, which is controlled
by the PRC government. Apart from the transactions
with HPEGC and fellow subsidiaries disclosed in section
(i) above, the Group also conducts business with other
state-controlled entities. The directors consider those
state-controlled entities are independent third parties so

far as the Group’s business transactions with them are

concerned.
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39.FABEAN LR 5 () . 39.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(DMEMPEBEECENRS ik (E) (ii) Transactions/balances with other state-controlled entities

in the PRC (continued)

FEREN BISRES AR E R R H i E In establishing its pricing strategies and approval process
2E

ZEBRET  AREXYTROHTT

for transactions with other state-controlled entities, the

E—ERABRE - Group does not differentiate whether the counter-party is

a state-controlled entity or not.

BEMBAECEETENRS BT Material transactions/balances with other state-controlled

entities are as follows:

2007 2006
ARETRT AREF T
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
HE Trade sales 26,320,560 25,399,170
REE Trade purchases 3,276,512 11,279,952
HBAhEREMNRK Amounts due to other

state-controlled entities 17,566,734 16,920,332

H B A b 2 FE UK Amounts due from other
state-controlled entities 14,960,475 13,604,214
o AREBAEEBEEBTM—LEEE In addition, the Group has entered into various transactions,
TMEMEBBETRER  BEZHRE including deposits placements, borrowings and other general
& BRAMEM—RIRITERE  cEEFEL banking facilities, with certain banks and financial institutions
RTXSMELE L BTeRA-HREE which are state-controlled entities in its ordinary course of
B e business. In view of the nature of those banking transactions,

the directors are of the opinion that separate disclosure would

not be meaningful.

BT LMRE EEeRAREMBEAELE Except as disclosed above, the directors are of the opinion
NRZERARELETEE - that transactions with other state-controlled entities are not
: significant to the Group's operations.
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40. EXEE

AEEEAEENERZEE  RERAKE
BEERERRENRS - BERBRENERL
B PUXFHEEREE  FMERANKRE
=0

AEERBEEELNES  BEHELRE
BAFHRE - RERIARERER &
SEAEEARRKRERS  MERKEE
REBETHR - BE_ZBZELF+T A=+
—ARBE_ZTRFT_A=t—HLLF
BAR - WEEXEBE  BERIEF -

AEBUERBRELERCOFHEHRABER
FOFER M)  BUHEEERNER - K
SENBRERBFRENEARBELE - F
BB EETERITREMENR  BNEER
HibENRIE - BETHRE - RERERES
HEEB - REER  ERAGELENT ¢

40.CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes during the years ended 31st December,
2007 and 2006.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. The Group's
policy is to maintain a stable gearing ratio. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, bills and other
payables, accruals, less cash and cash equivalents. The gearing
ratios as at the balance sheet dates were as follows:

2007 2006
AR%TT ARBEF T
Rmb’000 Rmb'000

BEARENR Amounts due to customers
for contract work 758,315 687,187
FE TR AR Trade creditors 5,267,391 6,539,743
Hh fE S SRR AT & Other creditors and accrued charges 2,757,797 1,470,850
Btz & Deposits received 18,803,988 17,588,182
R A% A Amounts due to shareholders - 1,071
KRR RSB R RIFIE Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 23,426 12,952
2 /NI & Advance from holding company 246,658 501,151
ERH e Tax liabilities 1,057,226 490,976
& ;R Borrowings 4,763,279 4,373,038
B B BRI E B R Less: Restricted bank deposits (6,630) (12,000)
B3 BRTF 3K Pledged bank deposits (169,684) (40,500)
EHTF R Bank deposits (940,000) (581,209)
RITHEFT AR Cash and bank balances (8,681,542) (5,157.262)
FE Net debt 23,880,224 25,874,179
FEREWIN Equity 7,212,993 4,831,467
B AR EFET Capital and net debt 31,093,217 30,705,646
BEARBEEE Gearing ratio 77% 84%
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M.ERITEBNDE 41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

REEH SLRMITEEFHREmENT The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

EREE Financial assets
o>
%} 2007 2006
il ARETR ARBTIT
% Rmb’000 Rmb'000
i UK B 7R Trade debtors 8,994,565 6,577,935
g FERER Bills receivable 208,710 316,855
o H A 8 WK Other debtors 675,214 688,464
?; EiEA R B Amounts due from customers
ol for contract work 3,632,591 3,541,262
N & 7] Pl B A R SRR Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 67,327 54,741
§ HERRE Available-for-sale investments 28,074 30,947
% A PR E BFER Restricted bank deposits 6,630 12,000
§ B4 3 BB 3K Pledged bank deposits 169,684 40,500
) EHFES Bank deposits 940,000 581,209
e RITHEFRRE Cash and cash equivalents 8,681,542 5,157,262
23,404,337 17,001,175
SHEE Financial liabilities
2007 2006
ARETR ARBET T
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
BEAREMNK Amounts due to customers for contract work 758,315 687,187
FERT AR R Trade creditors 5,267,391 6,539,743
HAoth TR R EET B A Other creditors and accrued charges 2,757,797 1,470,850
R 1% B F I8 Amounts due to shareholders - 1,071
USEES =PI 6 Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 23,426 12,952
RGN BIFRIE Advance from holding company 246,658 501,151
R E Tax liabilities 1,057,226 490,976
& Borrowings 4,763,279 4,373,038
14,874,092 14,076,968
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42. B EREEBRERBUIR

AEEZIBHBTABEFHEERE
FEYE 5 K E A EUGR - BN B 5 K E Al &
M EK - RITEFLRERES - TXHSH
ZEE BT AR /2 BN a0 Al % 3 R
K EREEEENMEEZERR A
IR B B AN B RO IR BGE B 2 56

EE R

HWEAR—_TELF+ -_A=+—"BKRERE
TREZALE  AAKERSRCEANS
BEMAARZBEREERBRAENGAE
ERBERIEBZEEZRESERR - B&%
RREREEERR  AEEEREECDE
K—HAABBEHIEERE  FEELR
H A EEHR 81 - DARE LR SREUER #E 45 4 UK 1B 28
HIRNZEE - s REBEER - AEE
EHFEEHEMERNE S EERZJKRE S
B R AR E S BT 2 R E R
BERH - UME - ARAEFR/AE
Bz EERBREKRERE -

RBIEREAEFZEERRER - RAR
HFRGIBEREEFERBL TRER
RZRIT- AEEZEERRYFERE
ToRAEZRRESZRE T ZHE O

MENE & EL R
R-FZTLFREZEREFE  AEEZ
MBETEZRBEEBARLKERS RN

EREEBEBEEZES - RK - NEEHA
BITRIFRINBER - —TTELFE - A
SENPMEARERER RS LF
+TZA=+—BHRERREEEEA
B A R #8,681,5642,0007T @ & — T T X
F W AR%S5,157,262,0007t EFt A R
3,524,280,0007T °

42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments including available-
for-sale investments, trade and other debtors, trade and
other creditors, borrowings and bank balances and deposits.
The risks associate with and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure approximate measures

are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at
31st December, 2007 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
receivable at each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank deposit and balances is limited because
the counterparties are major state owned banks. The Group
has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure

spread over a number of counterparties.

Liquidity risk

With regard to 2007 and thereafter, the liquidity of the Group
is primarily dependent on its ability to maintain adequate cash
flow from operations to meet its debt obligations as they fall
due. The Group has good standing among its bankers. The
Group continued to enjoy a strong financial position at the
end of 2007, with cash and cash equivalents amounting to
Rmb8,681,542,000 as at 31st December 2007, an increase of
Rmb3,524,280,000 from Rmb5,157,262,000 in 2006.
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POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

the balance sheet date are as follows:

42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at

THE GROUP
XEE
2007
20074
PRE BELLE
Less than 18528 25 F5E More h
Tyear 1to2years 2to5years thanb years Total
ARBTT ARBTR ARBTT ARETT AREFT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
&3k Borrowings 753,387 716,092 1,754,244 1,539,556 4,763,279
LR R RIEHER Other creditors and accrued charges 2,757,797 - - - 2,757,797
RAZHBARFE Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 23,426 - - - 23,426
RERARZE Advance from holding company 103,956 - - 142,702 246,658
3,638,566 716,092 1,754,244 1,682,258 7,791,160
20064 2006
DRE SEMLE

Less than 16225 2EEBE More gt
1 year 1to2years  2tob5years  thanb years Total
ARETT ARETT AREBFTL AREFT AREFT
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
A Borrowings 501,117 542,000 1,912,000 1,417,921 4,373,038
AN RETER Other creditors and accrued charges 1,470,850 - - - 1,470,850
RERFAE Amounts due to shareholders 1,071 - - - 1,071
REZHBARFE Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 12,952 = = = 12,952
RERARFE Advance from holding company 277,551 - - 223,600 501,151
2,263,541 542,000 1,912,000 1,641,521 6,359,062
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2. MHBEMEEBERBR(E)

Fl == g

AEEMEHZMNEEHRBREZEHEE
EMEMRITER - BFERERAB - A%
BRI EARERBR - AT BEEYH
MEREBRETEZETBNETERZ BT
EXINERER -

AEBRNXESEHEG M EEAREBEAR
SEZHBERTREMCEERH KR_ZFF
NER-ZZELF+_A=+—H ' fdfs

AIREE EFERFIED IR EINA
R#%25,978,000t R T TERHANF
BMEEEFSFIEM WK -

H b (B8 AR

AEEEFTEEEMAESESRRKEME
RER

¥ E M

AEBZETESRUFBEAINESE - B
BEEAEIMNERRIY AINEERA OREE
DR - SNEEIEOY NERRE H &5
T °

42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed rate
bank deposits, debentures and borrowings. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arises.

The Group’'s exposure to interest rate risk for changes in
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing
borrowings. As at 31st December, 2007 and 2006, if interest
rates on borrowings had been 5% higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, profit for the current/prior year would
have been Rmb25,978,000 and nil, lower/higher respectively,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expense on floating

rate borrowings.

Other price risk

The Group is not exposed to any equity securities risk or

commodity price risk.

Currency risk

Certain trade receivables of the Group are denominated in
foreign currencies. The management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and hedges certain exposure using foreign currency
forward contracts. The foreign currency forward contracts do

not qualify for hedging accounting.

2007 2006
AR%TT AREF T
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
SHEMER 2SR EE © Financial assets denominated
in foreign currencies:
JFE W BR 3R Trade debtors 3,884,831 4,041,642
RITHEFRRS Bank balance and cash 1,746,815 512,864

5,631,646 4,554,506
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2. HBEIGEEBERBK(E) {  42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

EERMR(E)
2007 2006
AREFR ARBTT
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
SHEEME. SB[ © Financial liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies:
(=R Borrowings 511,323 -
2007 2006
ARETR ARBTT
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
SRMEENATEEZ|R : The financial assets were denominated
in the following foreign currencies:
BT EUR 227,386 24,886
ey usD 4,694,090 4,141,953
BT HKD 710,170 387,667
5,631,646 4,554,506
2007 2006
ARETR AREET T
Rmb’000 Rmb'000

SRABBAUTERSIR : The financial liabilities were denominated
in the following foreign currencies:

ETT UsD 511,323 =
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2. MHBEMEEBERBR(E)

TRETAEEAINEEAHARBER

T MEDHFRREHEAERAELT

42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the

balance sheet date to a reasonably possible change in the

Rmb exchange rate, with all other variables held constant,

BRI RE - of the Group's net profit (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities).

20074 2007
ExtH BLY RBRENZINOZE
Increase/decrease Effect on profit
in foreign currency rate before taxation
ARETRE
Rmb’000
T EUR 5% 11,369
-5% (11,369)
E usD 5% 209,138
-5% (209,138)
BT HKD 5% 35,509
-5% (35,509)

20064 2006
EX A RS BREAEFOFE
Increase/decrease Effect on profit
in foreign currency rate before taxation
ARETTT
Rmb’'000
BT EUR 5% 1,244
-5% (1,244)
ET usDb 5% 207,098
-5% (207,098)
BIT HKD 5% 19,383
-5% (19,383)
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43. T EMBATFk

BER_ZTTLF+_HA=+—H 2

43.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

Details of the Company’'s principal subsidiaries as at 31st

AERBEE I EEN T EME QA December, 2007 all of which are incorporated and operating
BN in the PRC, are:
ATRERRER
ZEREELA
Proportion
#REF of nominal value
MEAEEHE Registered of registered capital TEED
Name of subsidiary share capital held by the Company Principal activities
AREFT E#
Rmb'000  Directly Indirectly
% %
REERERERELAR 746,853 90.94 - EERE
Manufacture of boilers
REERERBARELAR 709,237 8737 - EEZARBEDEENIORBEDRE
Manufacture of steam turbine generator sets and hydro
turbine generator sets
RREEHIRAREALA 136,000 100 - REBIRME TR
Provision of engineering services for power stations
BRE=FIZRABRAR ** 76,116 72.13 - FEBRSRARE VRLEENRENER SRE
ERRRAB IEREERHE
Development, production and sale of plasma-enhanced and
electrochemical surface ceramicised light alloy materials,
building aluminum templates and boards, industrial special
nature materials, electrophoresis paints and electrolyte,
relevant chemical products.
REEDNIRHESRHERAR ** 27000  55.55 44.45 g5
Trading
REEEREERALAR 859,723  62.54 - EETIHTER
Manufacture of steam turbines
REERNEHERZEREMLA * 10,000 - 75 BHERE
Property development
REERARFRNERAR ** 80,000 34 63.85 P
Manufacture of valves
RERXTREAZIEHRRD 50,000 60 - EEREREIREN
BRAR * Research and development of power equipment
engineerisation technology
RB=FEHEEREELT 53,127 - 50 EReHE  BREIH L5 RAMEERREBRITN

B EFER  RAREHREMH  TEAREEERD
EE - MIRHE

Development, production and sale of electrochemical surface
ceramicised light alloy materials and relevant technology;
Manufacture, processing and trading of electricity products,
relevant raw materials and accessories.
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43. T EMB AT (E)

43.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

ARNFAEMEF
ZEREELH
Proportion
gMEx of nominal value
WEABLE Registered of registered capital TEEH
Name of subsidiary share capital held by the Company Principal activities
AREFT EE [}
Rmb'000  Directly Indirectly
% %
REERERRRREREELR 10,010 - 100 REREREBERER
Provision of repairs and maintenance service
for steam turbines
Pﬁélﬁﬁﬂ%*“ﬁ&mﬁn$m 10,000 - 100 RRRFZKNEERERM
BRAR Research and development of hydropower generation
equipment engineerisation technology
REBREEXFHERZBRAR * 20,000 - 90 FHERENES
Property development and property rentals
RERERBRER * 8,000 - 78 EETRE
Manufacture of engineering equipment
REERSHEEZROHERAR ** 20,000 - 35 FHERENEES
(FF)(note) Property development and property rentals
REEEREEEIRERAR * 60,000 - 100 RABRETERE
Provision of engineering service to turbines
REBELBENESERRRA ¢ 3,000 - 75 FHERS

* BREMERF
*x B BERRA

w

REREERBAEATHEEERNHER
RAEN6%EMEARR D BAKE N E
mERF RRESEEEEL %
Bt A EBaZEH —F A ENRARE
-

EXZeRR/ULRBIIRT ERRHFELE

BXEREECMBAR - EFSRA/ET
HibMIB AR FHIEERU RS REERIT
£ o

REFZRE — KB R BB EEMEBER
R

* %

Note:

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries

would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

Property rental

Limited liabilities company

Joint stock limited enterprise

According to the written declaration received from certain
shareholders who held 16% registered capital of M5 f& /&M B ith 2=
EXMRMDABMR AT, these shareholders would vote for the same
decision as the Group and therefore the Group could control

more than half of the voting power of the companies.

excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities

during the year.
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Disclosure of Significant Events

20076 A22A( 28 A) L5955 A
RITERBEM B E= K8 /153958
P17 & H AR - A7 T20065F EARE
BAEXRE &% uﬁT%Wzooﬁ

AR2ARRBEAFERGRMMAI 22

2y g
EE

EEHMEEERB/N

200741 H8H » A RIHEF(F 5 EEHE
Bl TRAB AR T EAKAREE
1X350MW 60Hz A B # 40 = K I # it
EaR, 8RITABmEMS

200718 + AR/ EERE QN AFER NG
SERNE S HBERIBOMWE - # - &
FHELEREHESRIENER

20071 H - RAIEIULRERZ=RAA
ERFTHENE E i & E#E4 X 600MWaR 8
ARBESH 4 BHEERERK

2007F3A128 * RRIEEBERE
NAIEE] T HE B #1X660M Wi 78 /8
EBEAER BRXEEEOOMWE FEPC
HAEE

2007F4R @ RA)EERL QAR H
EHRN B2X670MWE e R A A R £
W HAEBRABAIBERE -

200755818F * AFIEM|LEZRE
ERETARFEF TEFBEAMWEIFAR
RS BIREAKRESHEESR

200757H188 - RRIEEEBREFHE
T 41478 B 600MWRER A" W™ A 448
BAR :

The 2006 Annual General Meeting of the Company was held
in the meeting-room on the 17th Floor, at Block B, No. 39
Sandadongli Road, Xiangfang District, Harbin, Heilongjiang
Province, PRC, at 9 AM on 22nd June, 2007 (Friday). All of the
proposed resolutions stated in the Notice of Annual General

Meeting on 23rd April, 2007 were passed at the meeting.

Material New Contracts

On 8th January 2007, the Company signed a general contract
withF R BB Z=R R TR& B A Fto supply 1x350MW 60Hz
thermal power generator units of three main equipments inik
$ME X Brazil, which marked our first entry in the Southern

American market;

In January 2007, the contact for the supply of the first set
of super critical 350MW boiler, generator and main power
equipment to Ruijing in the Mainland signed between the

Company and Huaneng took effect;

In January 2007, the contract signed between the Company
andlUEREZ="Aalto supply 4x600MW sub-critical boilers
toEHT & #in India took effect;

On 12th March 2007, the Company signed a general contract
withENJEEI K E /] A Alfor the 1x660MW generator units in
PAITON, Indonesia, which marked the first 600MV class EPC

export project being contracted,;

In April 2007, the contract signed between the Company
and with Huaneng for the Jilin nine 2x670MW super critical
generator units took effect, which was the first super critical

tower brown coal boiler;

On 18th May 2007, the Company signed a contract with/ (LI
2T N ERE T Ato supply two 9F class gas turbines and

combined circle units island forf&fprojects;

On 18th July 2007, the Company signed a contract withZEE
‘A Blfor the world’s first 600MW super critical “W" fire boiler

for Zhenhong project;
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On 16th August 2007, the Company signed a contract with
Daitang International for the world's first ultra super critical
1000MW air cooling steam turbine and generator units for

Shanxi Dingshang project;

On 27th August 2007, the Company signed a contract with
Daitang International for the project of 2x1000MW ultra
super critical main equipment in whole set inZ2{t 72, Inner
Mongolia;

On 29th August 2007, the Company signed a contract withE &
T AR A7lin Shandong to supply 2x300MW thermal power
equipments inEE-KZE 4, Brazil.

On 31st August 2007, the Company signed a general contract
with CMEC for the Laos HONGSA 3x600MW pit-mount thermal
power EPC project, which amounted to US$1.35 billion;

On 12th September 2007, the Company signed a contract
withs Bl =T = Igk T 32 57 3 422 &) for the 2x700MW hydro power
turbine generator units of the underground power station of
the Three Gorges;

On 28th October 2007, the Company signed a conventional
island contract with=F9#% & AR 22 Alfor the Sanmen Nuclear
Power equipment in Zhejiang Province, and obtained the
order for the first three generation 1,000MW nuclear power
project in the Mainland;

On 21st October 2007, the Company signed a contract with ESSAR
Company in India to supply two 2x600MW main equipment
island to MAHAN and SALAYA, which achieved the export of

600MW class in whole set to India for the first time;

On 19th November 2007, the Company signed a contract
with CMEC for the 1x300MW project main equipment in
PUTTALAM, Sir Lanka;

On 29th November 2007, the Company signed a general contract
with$® % & 7% {5 2 Alin Vietnam for the Second Stage 300MW
coal-fired equipment units in Campha, Vietnam;
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In December 2007, the Company obtained the tender of China

Resources Jinneng 2x330MW de-sulfur island project;

On 31st January 2008, the Company signed a contract with
Shangdong Nuclear Power Co., Ltd for the gas turbine generator

units equipment of Haiyang Nuclear Power project;

On 1st January 2007, the Company commenced to adopt the

new Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

On the 15th of January 2007 the Company held a Board
of Directors’ Meeting. The Meeting decided to invest and
found the Harbin Electric Machinery AC/DC Co. Ltd. with a
registered capital of RMB100 million. The Company is its sole
shareholder and has invested RMB87.20 million.

On 2nd March, 2007, the Company completed the issuance
of H share, of which 102.355 million H shares were further
issued. The price per share is HK$10.00. The net listing
proceeds amounted to HK$1,000 million. On the same day,
shareholders of the Company remitted 10.235 million shares
of state share to National Social Security Fund and registered
as H share. Such financing would be mainly invested in the
1,000MW class nuclear island main equipment project of the
Second stage of Qinghuangdao Seaside Heavy Duty Workshop
Construction. The total capital stock of the Company increased
to 1,376.806 million shares. Among which 701.235 million
shares, accounting for 50.93%, H share amounted to 675.571
million Shares, accounting for 49.07% were held by Harbin

Power Engineering Corp.

On the 15th of June 2007, the Company held the 5th meeting
of the 5th session of the Board of Directors. The Meeting
decided to invest and found theX RI#ZEMPI A alwith a
registered capital of RMB100 million. The Company is its sole
shareholder. The Meeting also decided to invest and found
(Qinghuangdao) Heavy Duty Equipment Co. Ltd. on the basis
of the subsidiary of Qinghuangdao, with a registered capital
of RMB100 million. The Company is its sole shareholder
and has invested RMB90.00 million. (Qinghuangdao) Heavy
Duty Equipment Co. Ltd. has been gradually developed as
a composite production base of large-scale thermal power,

nuclear power and gas power equipments of the Company.
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2007F6A22B AR BREREEES
FERNREE ERBERRAFAEER
B OARAEREEEGHMEKM AR
2007 FEIR AR ENEFA - B2
FEE(FS)STMEHATAAR2007
FEIRIN TR E ROAZ BT -

2007F8A10H R RIBAHFEAEEEE
FELREgE BHRABRTARNEHRRS
FIH - WK ETANERBITEEH R
B o

2007F12R26B AR BHA T E A E
E=2gFE/\RegH FE2BBT LA
(2008 F EZ2010F = F R 5 ) I
RESRELEBDRBEIBLRE -

200843 A7 R (2 M h) 1 7 A M kKR
RAG §RAB/TUATEE:

(1) ZEIEHREERARAERLEE
EERMRRREENES - UGH
FABEEHNES EHAZRZA
HEAEEESREA[L -

© 2008F3H7HARIBR TEREES

EHREER ERERITHRLERE

e ET

BRIALEIRIN - ARRARBEMBREMARE
B2=EH-

7. On 22nd June, 2007, the fifth session of the Board of Directors
held its Sixth Board of Directors Meeting. The Meeting exercised
the powers conferred by the shareholders’ General Meeting
to appoint China Rightson Yue Hua Certified Public Accounts
as the principal auditor of the Company’s Domestic Financial
Reports Year 2007; and Yue Hua Certified Public Accounts (Hong
Kong) as the principal auditor of the Company’'s Overseas

Financial Reports Year 2007.

8. On 10th August, 2007, the fifth session of the Board of Directors
held its Seventh Board of Directors Meeting, where the motion
of connected transaction of the Company was passed, and
the motion of implementation of the statutory disclosure

procedure according the Listing Rules was demanded.

9. The fifth session of Board of Directors held its eighth meeting on
the 26th of December 2007, where the “Connected Transaction
for the three year during 2008 to 2010" was passed. The
Meeting appointed Mr. Han Jian-wei as the Deputy General

Manager of the Company.

10. On Friday, 7th March 2008, the Company held a provisional
Shareholder’'s Meeting. The Meeting passed the following

motions:

(1) The appointment of Mr. Wang Zhi-sen as the Supervisor
of the fifth session of the Supervisory Committee on
behalf of the Shareholders. His remuneration terms are
defined in the form of contract and his term of office is
from the date of appointment up to the date of election

of Supervisor.

11. The fifth session of Board of Directors held its provisional
meeting on the 14th March 2008, where Mr. Wang Zhi-sen was

elected as the Chairman of the Supervisory Committee.

Other than disclosed above, the Company did not have other
significant events, which should be disclosed in the period

under review.
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REGISTERED NAME OF THE COMPANY
RRERBHRERNDAERQA

ENGLISH NAME OF THE COMPANY

Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited

REGISTERED ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY

Block 3

Nangang District High Technology Production Base
Harbin

Heilongjiang

PRC

Registration No. 2301001003796

OFFICE ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY

Block B, No. 39 Sanda Dongli Road
Xiangfang District

Harbin

Heilongjiang Province

PRC

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

20th Floor, Alexandra House
16-20 Chater Road
Central

Hong Kong

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

Gong Jing-kun

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Qu Da-zhuang

Ma Sui

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ma Sui
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Information of the Company (continued)

AUDITORS
Yuehua CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants
17/F, One Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

China Rightson Yuehua Certified Public Accountants

Company Limited

1201 — 1205 B,

Eagle Run Plaza

No. 26 Xiao Yun Road
Chaoyang District
Beijing 100016

PRC

LEGAL ADVISORS

as to PRC Law

Haiwen & Partners

Room 1016, Beijing Silver Tower
No.2, Dongsanhuan North Road
Chaoyang District

Beijing

PRC

as to Hong Kong Law
Richards Butler

20th Floor

Alexandra House
16-20 Chater Road
Central

Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION

H Shares

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Code: 1133
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ERRG#IE DEPOSITARY
HHAYIRTT The Bank of New York

EEEFES American Depositary Receipts

22nd Floor West 22nd Floor West

110 Barclay Street 110 Barclay Street

New York, NY 10286 USA New York, NY 10286 USA

BEERAR INVESTOR RELATIONS

PO. Box 11258 PO. Box 11258

Church Street Station Church Street Station

New York, NY 10286-1258 New York, NY10286-1258

B REIE SHARE REGISTER AND TRANSFER OFFICE
EEEBHELARAT Hong Kong Registrars Limited

5 Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

T Hopewell Centre,

ERRNER1835R 183 Queen’'s Road East,

SRR L17H81712-1716F Wanchai, Hong Kong

AT EE ERE B INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY
BEESNRERDERAT Available at Secretary Office
EETHER of the Board of Directors

AR Block B, No. 39 Sanda Dongli Road

WS EA T Xiangfang District

EYE Harbin

= RE) 1395 BEE PRC

EEERFE SHAREHOLDERS RECEPTION TIME
F HA8H - 18H « 28H (FifR B IEE) On 8th, 18th, and 28th (the following day in case holiday)
4 :9:00 - 11:00 From: 9:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. and
T4 :2:00 - 4:00 from: 2:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m.

EE 0 86-451-821357178482135727 Tel: 86-451-82135717 or 82135727

{55 : 86-451-82135700 Fax: 86-451-82135700
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Documents Available for Inspection

1. RARRIZEZELFEREER 1. The original copy of the 2007 Annual Report of the
Company.

2. ARAEEZ T IERRIEAR - 2. The original copy of the Company's audited financial
statements.
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of
Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited (the “Company”) for
the year of 2007 will be held at 17th Floor Meeting Room, Block
B, 39 Sandadongli Road,Xiangfang District, Harbin, Heilongjiang
Province, the People’'s Republic of China on Friday, 6th June,
2008 at 9:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To consider and approve the report of directors of the Company

for the year ended 31st December, 2007;

2. To consider and approve the report of supervisory committee
of the Company for the year ended 31st December, 2007;

3. To consider and approve the audited accounts and auditor’s
report of the Company for the period from 1st January, 2007

to 31st December, 2007,

4. To declare the 2007 dividend of Rmb0.091 per share.
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AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to appoint
any person to fill in a casual vacancy in the Board of Directors
or as an additional director, his term of office shall expire at
the conclusion of the next following annual general meeting

of the Company;

6. To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to
determine the appointment of auditors and authorize the Board

of Directors of the Company to fix their remuneration.

By order of the Board
Ma Sui

Company Secretary

Harbin, China, 11th April, 2008

Registered office of the Company:
Block 3, Nangang High Technology
Production Base

Harbin, Heilongjiang Province

People's Republic of China

Office Address of the Company:
Block B, No 39 Sandadongli Road, Xiangfang District
Harbin, Heilongjiang Province

People's Republic of China
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Notes:

For the purpose of determining the list of shareholders entitled to
attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting and the receive of the
proposed dividend of the year of 2007 to be declared at that meeting,
the Company shall temporarily suspend changes to the register of
shareholders from 6th May, 2008 to 5th June, 2008 (both day inclusive).
Shareholders whose names appear on the register at the time of
the suspension of registration shall be entitled to attend and vote at
the Annual General Meeting and shall be entitled to receive of the
proposed dividend of the year of 2007 (if declared at that General
Meeting). Persons who purchased shares of the Company during the
period of suspension of registration shall not be entitled to attend the

Annual General Meeting, nor to the dividend of the year of 2007.

Shareholders intending to attend the Annual General Meeting shall
give written notice of the same to the Company, which shall be lodge
at the office address of the Company on or before 5:00 p.m. on 16th
May, 2008.

A Shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more persons (whether or not a
shareholder of the Company) as his proxy to attend and vote instead

of him.

To be valid, the form of proxy, together with a duly notarized power
of attorney or other document of authority, if any, under which the
form is signed must be deposited at the office and communication
address of the Company not less than 24 hours before the time for

holding the Annual General Meeting.
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